mellER

Consolidated Income Statement

BE-E--H+-A=+—HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2021

FET

HK$'000

A B WA Interest income 6 2,660,602 906,148
B H Interest expense 7 (2,304,711) (451,260)
ER 2 WA Net interest income 355,891 454,888
EomElRE FEE Net premiums earned 8 3,677,750 3,834,633
H At A Other income 9 412,976 2,146,210
KE R ANBE Total operating income 4,446,617 6,435,731

RREAFHE B Ek Net claims incurred, benefits paid and

REFBEABEES movement in policyholders’ liabilities 8 (3,578,587) (4,079,450)
HAetHFEERHEEY T Net commission and levy expenses 8 (720,735) (962,127)
Pt Operating expenses 10 (515,465) (491,896)
REDBERTHRK L (B18) %4  Operating (loss)/profit before impairment (368,170) 902,258
B 4 Change in impairment allowances 12 (6,046) (8,185)
BRELAT (E51) BRI (Loss)/profit before taxation (374,216) 894,073
FiIE Taxation 13(a) 54,808 (62,975)
REE (FR),ER (Loss)/profit for the year (319,408) 831,098

4R 269 B BT R A M TSR A — /B2 -

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BE-E--H+-A=+—HLEFE
for the year ended 31 December 2022

NEFE (E18) /S 7l (Loss)/profit for the year (319,408) 831,098
Hit2mEs : Other comprehensive income:
HEWEES>BEER Items that are or may be reclassified

MIIER : subsequently to profit or loss:
AAFEZ L AEME2E  Debt instruments at fair value through

FERTA : other comprehensive income:

— R EES)FE — change in the fair value, net (12,070) 2,634

— BEREBEYTFE — change in the loss allowance, net 12 (363) (737)
REMEEWEERAIRER Cash flow hedges recognised in other

Epati comprehensive income:

— A EEE)FE — change in the fair value, net 133,338 5,724
ANEEEMEEKE Other comprehensive income

2R F7 18 for the year, net of tax 120,905 7,621
AEEEMH(BR) =85 Total comprehensive (loss)/income

for the year (198,503) 838,719

$1545269 8 FiEl st Atr A BIISHRERN—285 - The notes on pages 154 to 269 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

REZBZZF+=A=+—H
as at 31 December 2022

2021
T
HK$'000
BE ASSETS
ReENEHES Cash and short-term funds 14 34,525,384 45,249,382
JE W R B K% FE 5K Interest and remittance receivables 5 1,423,956 871,272
PTESHBMTA Derivative financial instruments 16 603,715 812,397
A J\m%ﬂﬁ?ﬁ%ﬂriﬂ"l’ﬂ’\] Loans with special 100%
DEERBERERK guarantee under the SME Financing
Guarantee Scheme 17 90,162,235 71,063,154
ESEEFEE Loan portfolio, net 18 11,455,458 8,570,813
ﬂé%‘*’&ﬁ Investment securities:
NI BT AEAM — fair value through other
%EH&Z comprehensive income 19(a) 1,244,974 3,647,182
— UAFEZ T ABR — fair value through profit or loss 19(b) 9,628 10,710
— B AT IR — amortised cost 19(c) 13,143,076 11,206,992
INE RS TFRN Placements with the Exchange Fund 20 32,798,933 28,633,258
EREIE - me RHEMmEE Prepayments, deposits and other assets 22 4,913,818 2,267,537
TRIEF IR E B Deferred tax assets 13(b) 162,155 116,547
BRREE Reinsurance assets 26 734,052 491,049
BE&E Fixed assets 23 187,776 237,941
EEARE Total assets 191,365,160 173,178,234
=R LIABILITIES
FESF &, Interest payable 24 1,654,279 688,242
FEIIRIE « S S R H AL Accounts payable, accrued expenses
A& and other liabilities 25 12,990,383 21,384,151
PTAESFTA Derivative financial instruments 16 4,192,097 334,529
EHINIEAE Current tax liabilities 13(b) 98,666 136,260
R BE Insurance liabilities 26 20,855,171 16,784,290
ERTERES Debt securities issued 27 131,075,272 115,652,967
BEHEE Total liabilities 170,865,868 154,980,439
= EQUITY
A ARG R Capital and reserves attributable to
the equity holder:
[N Share capital 28 12,000,000 9,500,000
RER & A Retained profits 5,867,873 6,618,097
2\ B8 e Contingency reserve 2,493,470 2,062,654
N EFEE Fair value reserve (1,017) 11,416
E Hedging reserve 138,966 5,628
TESAREE Total equity 20,499,292 18,197,795
EEREREE Total liabilities and equity 191,365,160 173,178,234
EEREN-_E_=FREA-_+-_HBHH#ENE®E Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 May
7T o 2023.
REX YUE Wai Man, Eddie =SH LI Ling Cheung, Raymond

BlEEF#EH7TESE Deputy Chairman and Executive Director

F 154269 B FTEMIRE BAR A M ISSRER M — 25 ©
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H7TE FFLEH Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

The notes on pages 154 to 269 are an integral part of these consolidated
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GARBSBE
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-E--H+-A=+—HLEFE
for the year ended 31 December 2022

ke REEN  EAREE ATERGE  HPERE 2
Share Retained Contingency  Fair value Hedging

capital profits reserve reserve reserve Total
THL THL T T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RoB- 5Bk Balance as at 1 January 2021 7000000 6075082 1774571 9,519 (06) 14,859,076
RER T Profit for the year - 831,098 - - - 831,098
2 ERH Other comprehensive income - - - 1,897 5,724 7,621
REEREHN B Total comprehensive income for the year - 831,098 - 1,897 5724 838,719
& (firiE28) Capital injection (Note 28) 2,500,000 - - - - 2,500,000

HRERTIEACHARR  Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk
REFEMN 0% 75% 2 premium earned from retained

ARG profits to contingency reserve - (522,348) 522,348 - - -
HERFEEREZRAET  Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits - 234,265 (234,265) - - -
M=E--£+-A=1-H Balance as at 31 December 2021
i3 9,500,000 6,618,097 2,062,654 1,416 5,628 18,197,795
KEEER Loss for the year - (319,408) - - - (319,408)
2w (58) /%5 Qther comprehensive (loss)/income - - - (12.433) 133,338 120,905
NEERE(BE)/%F2%E  Total comprehensive (loss)/income
for the year - (319,408) - (12,433) 133,338 (198,503)
A (7 28) Capital injection (Note 28) 2,500,000 - - - - 2500000

AREEFIBASHEER  Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk
REFEM 0% 75% & premium earned from retained

Bl profits to contingency reserve - (574,660) 574,660 - - =
mERFEROZRZLHA  Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits - 143,844 (143 844) - - -
M=Z-Z#+-B=+-F Balance as at 31 December 2022
3] 12,000,000 5867873 2,493,470 (1,017) 138,966 20,499,292

P54 269 B FRE st Atra IR —585 o The notes on pages 154 to 269 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE-E--H+-A=+—HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2021

TAT
HK$'000

REEBEIRERE cash flows from operating activities
REERTA (EE), %5 (Loss)/profit before taxation for the year (374,216) 894,073
AT SIBEL A THEE Adjustments for:
A2 A Interest income (2,637,663) (904,173)
FEZH Interest expense 2,215,031 341,069
% BUg A Dividend income 9 (253) (215)
REINEE ST RA W Income from placements with
the Exchange Fund 9 (532,861) (1,991,151)
e Depreciation 10 79,537 90,077
BRITERE ST E Amortisation of discount on debt
securities issued 89,680 110,191
B Charge of impairment allowances 12 6,046 8,185
BHERE TR B o Amortisation of discount on
investment securities (22,939) (1,975)
AEEE (LT ABENIRE Net loss on investments at fair value
Fﬂ/ﬁa@%ﬁﬁ through profit or loss 9 1,092 10,238
SR T AR EED Change in fair value of
financial instruments 39,853 (192,870)
o E R SRR AT IR E Net gain on disposal of investment at
W F58 amortised cost 9 - (3,235)
HEBREEERNEE Loss on disposal of fixed assets = 61
2 U F & Interest received 2,420,795 1,186,346
EAF & Interest paid (1,593,311) (581,019)
Rt EEERBEEZHH Cash flows used in operating activities
KEEBERRERE before changes in operating assets
and liabilities (309,209) (1,034,398)
FEEEAHBE=E A EETTFEZ Change in time deposits with original
b maturity of more than three months 26,803,828 (24,046,208)
JREE LA P SR Change in remittance receivables 8,501 (80,487)
FERNFIE - ZekHEMEES Change in prepayments, deposits and
other assets (2,657,905) (1,803,246)
RN EIEIERSEI TWE S B Change in loans with special 100%
EREBERE guarantee under the SME Financing
Guarantee Scheme (19,099,081) (34,978,441)
BERBEEEE Change in loan portfolio (2,892,147) (1,519,745)
FERHIRTE  FENFIS REM B[ Change in accounts payable, accrued
o expenses and other liabilities (8,581,946) 11,605,798
R BB FEEET Change in insurance liabilities, net 3,827,878 5,483,772
bE 5 =78 Exchange differences (9,412) (37,712)
REEBER RS Cash used in operation (2,909,493)  (46,410,667)
B8 Taxation paid (16,770) (180)
4R B 3R (e MR 30 S S EE Net cash used in operating activities (2,926,263) (46,410,847)
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REZTE2HERE Cash flows from investing activities

BEETEEE Purchase of fixed assets (29,288) (61,754)
BEUAFEE(Lst AEAM Purchase of investment securities
ZHWEHEFRE at fair value through other
comprehensive income 19(a) (660,388) -
B 3R S AR AN B IR MY 3B 5 Purchase of investment securities
%E at amortised cost 19(C) (3,992,780) (2,744,548)
& RIEREHE &S IR Proceeds from sale and redemption
of investment securities 4,794,810 2,375,562
INEE ST Placements with the Exchange Fund (4,907,000)  (11,640,000)
HNEE D TR Withdrawals from the Exchange Fund 1,500,000 1,500,000
B ETRERE Dividend received from
listed investments 253 215
1B EEF 2 B4 5 Net cash used in investing activities (3,294,393)  (10,570,525)
B ESEE AR M B Net cash outflows before financing (6,220,656) (56,981,372
METE2HERE Cash flows from financing activities
RITERETERIE Proceeds from bank borrowings 73,176,972 19,821,844
BEBITER Repayment of bank borrowings (73,176,972) (19,821,844)
BITERELHEHE Proceeds from issue of debt securities 27 97,470,457 109,360,016
BOEEITERES Redemption of debt securities issued 27 (77,621,597)  (55,532,806)
HEMNRAEREZD Principal elements of lease payments (37,720) (37,247)
EB B RA Proceeds from capital injection 28 2,500,000 2,500,000
B EEEA VRS EE Net cash generated from financing activities 22,311,140 56,289,963
ReRERBESEBEREM Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
() 258 cash equivalents 16,090,484 (691,409)
FYRERERELIER Beginning cash and cash equivalents 13,805,269 14,499,795
ERURSREEALEBSE Effect of exchange rates on cash and
cash equivalents (12,437) (3,117)
FRESRERESER Ending cash and cash equivalents 14 29,883,316 13,805,269

1545269 B Fsl M st At BB EHRERE—385 The notes on pages 154 to 269 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated

Financial Statements

WREE

BERBESBRAR (XAR) RENE
DA (EAEE) NG PBEHRE  B1%
RABEGMARRMNETENERSE
ZR(BRMAEEANERNTBH B REE
A BAGFEARRE)  BAERRNEG
FHRAIEFEC R BRDDIREREL -

A MBHRRIZELKABIIRE - X
ERARFEIRNEHREEREHREE
(BETAESRTA)MEMELFE -

Br BITRRALSN - BB ER A B TS IRR P FE
ROGBREMFEIE - BUE2RY
IBFEMERNER—2 -

BRI A BRI ERINH B RE
BRAETHREH A ME2EER
74 B 5 TSRS IR B 1T R ML U - 35
BAR A B 005 - KRR
HUGARBRRBESHRE SN
HARE -

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Mortgage
Corporation Limited (Company) and its subsidiaries (collectively
the Group) have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ((HKFRSs) which is a collective
term and includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRS), Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(HKASSs) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
financial instruments) carried at fair value.

The accounting policies and the methods of computation used
in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1. Adoption of HKFRSs

@)

(b)

New and amended standards effective on 1 January
2022

There are no new standards or amendment to
standards effective in 2022 that have material impact
on the Group.

New standards and amendments issued but not yet
effective

A number of new standards and amendments to
standards have been issued but are not effective for
annual periods beginning after 1 January 2022, and
have not been early adopted . The Group has assessed
the impact of these standards and amendments on
its consolidated financial statements and they are not
expected to have a material impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group, except for the HKFRS
17 “Insurance Contracts” which will be effective for
annual periods on 1 January 2023, with comparatives
restated from 1 January 2022. This standard sets
out the requirements that the Group should apply in
accounting for insurance it issues and reinsurance
contracts it holds, and apply retrospectively.

The Group plans to complete the full implementation
of HKFRS 17 in 2023, and the implementation project is
currently progressing as planned.
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SmEBEHRERMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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The insurance contracts of the Group would be
measured based on the measurement models set out
under HKFRS 17. The general measurement model is
expected to be used (the premium allocation approach
and variable fee approach are not expected to be
used). Under the general measurement model, the
insurance contract balances comprise the fulfilment
cash flows, risk adjustments and contractual service
margin. The current estimate of the future cash flows
of a group of contracts are the cash flows within the
contract boundary that the Group expects to collect
from premiums and pay-out for claims, benefits and
expenses, adjusted to reflect the timing and the
uncertainty of those amounts. The risk adjustment
for non-financial risks is applied to the present value
of the estimated future cash flows, and it reflects the
compensation that the Group requires for bearing
the uncertainty about the amount and timing of the
cash flows from non-financial risk as the Group fulfils
insurance contracts. The contractual service margin
is a component of the carrying amount of the asset
or liability for a group of insurance contracts issued
representing the unearned profit that the Group wil
recognise as it provides insurance contract services
in the future. Under HKFRS 17, commission payments
are absorbed into the contractual services margin
and are not expensed in the income statement at
the inception of the insurance contracts, and would
be recognised as insurance service expenses in the
income statement in a systematic way on the basis of
the passage of time. The same amount is recognised
as insurance revenue which represents the portion of
premiums recovering the commission payments. In
addition, a loss is recognised on initial recognition of a
group of insurance contracts if that group is onerous.
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2.2. ZFEIRE

BAVBRRBIERAARREEN
BRARBE—ZE_—F+=-_A=+—
HE SRR o

MiEBARIEAEEGEGEN DA
(BERANBETIRIBESNEE AR
EBRBIAFRE(E—)BRAT
(2 ##8%) & Bauhinia MBS Limited (2
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The Group adopts the fair value approach in
determining the transition amounts at the HKFRS
17 transition date being 1 January 2022, when it is
impracticable to use a full retrospective approach.
Under the fair value approach, the contractual services
margin at 1 January 2022 would be determined as
the difference between the fair value of a group of
contracts at that date and the fulfilment cash flows at
that date. The Group would measure the fair value of
the contracts as the present value of the net cash flows
expected to be generated by the contracts, determined
using a discounted cash flow technique. The cash
flows considered in the fair value measurement will
be consistent with those that are within the contract
boundary. Measurement of insurance contracts under
the fair value approach requires judgements, and the
Group will use reasonable and supportable information
available at 1 January 2022 to determine the level
of aggregation, identification of market participants,
assumptions underlying the measurement of insurance
contracts etc.

2.2. Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December 2022.

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities used
for issuing mortgage-backed securities, namely HKMC
Funding Corporation (1) Limited (dissolved) and Bauhinia
MBS Limited (dissolved)) over which the Group has control.
The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to,
or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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2.3.
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2.3.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interests in that subsidiary,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or l0ss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investment in the subsidiaries is stated at cost less provision
for impairment allowances. The results of the subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income
statement for all interest-bearing financial instruments using
the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument
or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates
cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument but does not consider expected credit losses.
The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other
premiums or discounts.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset
except for financial assets that subsequently become credit-
impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).
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2.4. Other income other than those arising from
insurance and guarantee contracts under Note 2.21

@)

Fee income

Fees are generally recognised on an accrual basis
when the service has been provided. Upfront
arrangement fees that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate are recognised as an adjustment
to the effective interest rate in determining interest
income on the loans.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Income from placements with the Exchange Fund

Changes in fair value of the placements with the
Exchange Fund classified as “financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss” is recognised as income or
loss in the year in which they arise.

2.5. Financial assets

@)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income
(OCl), or through profit or loss), and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will

either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI.

The Group has classified the placements with the
Exchange Fund as financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss.
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The Group reclassifies investment securities when
and only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed
in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Subsequent measurement of the Group’s financial
assets are classified into the following categories,
depending on the Group's business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset:

. Amortised cost: assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain
or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at amortised cost and is not part of
a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or
loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired.
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o Fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI). assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through OCI,
except for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in profit
or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
and recognised in other gains or losses.

o Fair value through profit or loss (FVPL): assets
that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost
or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss
on investment that is subsequently measured
at FVPL and is not part of a hedging relationship
is recognised in profit or loss and presented net
in the income statement within other gains or
losses in the period in which it arises.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the
expected credit losses (ECLS) associated with its assets
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 3.2
provides more details of how the ECLS is measured.
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2.6.

ol

Equity securities and investment funds

Equity securities are measured at FVPL unless an election is
made to designate them at FVOCI upon initial recognition.

For equity securities at FVPL, changes in fair value are
recognised in profit or l0ss in the period in which they arise.

The election of FVOCI is made upon initial recognition
on an instrument-by-instrument basis and once made is
irrevocable. Gains and losses on these equity securities are
recognised in OCI, which are not reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss, including when they are derecognised.

Investment funds are measured at FVPL. Changes in fair
value of these funds are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and financial
liabilities measured at amortised cost. All the financial
liabilities are classified at inception and recognised initially at
fair value.

Debt securities issued in the statement of financial position
include (i) notes issued under the Debt Issuance Programme
(DIP), and (ii) notes issued under the Medium Term Note
(MTN) Programme.

These notes are initially designated as either (i) financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or (ii) financial
liabilities at amortised cost.

The notes classified as financial liabilities at amortised cost
are initially recognised at fair value, which is the fair value of
the consideration received, net of transaction costs incurred.
The notes are subsequently stated at amortised costs; any
difference between proceeds net of transaction costs and
the redemption value is recognised in the income statement
over the period of the debt securities using the effective
interest method.
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2.8.

On redemption/repurchase of the notes, the resulting gains
or losses, being the difference between the redemption/
repurchase amount and the carrying amount, are recognised
in the income statement in the period in which the
redemption/repurchase takes place.

Recognition and de-recognition of financial
instruments

Purchases and sales of investment securities are recognised
on the trade date, the date on which the Group purchases
or sells the assets. Loan portfolio and receivables are
recognised when cash is advanced to the borrowers.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or where
the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
and debt securities issued are recognised on the trade
date. Other financial liabilities are recognised when such
obligations arise. Financial liabilities are derecognised from
the statement of financial position when and only when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired.

The Group does not recognise an asset and a liability, when
the Group enters into an arrangement to pass through cash
flows from an asset and that arrangement meets specified
conditions. In these cases, the Group acts more as an agent
of the eventual recipients of the cash flows than as an owner
of the asset. Accordingly, to the extent that those conditions
are met the arrangement is treated as a transfer and
considered for derecognition even though the entity may
continue to collect cash flows from the asset. Conversely, to
the extent the conditions are not met, the entity acts more
as an owner of the asset with the result that the asset should
continue to be recognised.
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2.9. Derivative financial instruments and hedge

accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subseqguently remeasured at their fair value. Fair values are
obtained from market prices in active markets, including
recent market transactions, and valuation techniques,
including discounted cash flow models and options pricing
models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets
when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value
is negative. Interest receivables and payables arising from
derivatives are separately presented in the statement of
financial position.

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial
recognition is the transaction price (i.e. the fair value of the
consideration given or received).

Certain derivatives embedded in financial liabilities are
treated as separate derivatives when their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of
the host contract and the host contract is not carried at fair
value through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in the income statement.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or
loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a
hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being
hedged. The Group designates certain derivatives as either:
(i) hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities
or firm commitments (fair value hedge); or, (ii) hedges of
highly probable future cash flows attributable to a recognised
asset or liability, or a forecast transaction (cash flow
hedge). Hedge accounting is used for derivatives designated
in this way provided certain criteria are met.
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At the inception of the hedging, the Group documents the
economic relationship between hedging instruments and
hedged items, including whether changes in cash flows of
the hedging instruments are expected to offset changes in
the cash flows of hedged items. The Group documents its
risk management objective and strategy for undertaking
its hedge transactions. The Group also documents its
assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing
basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging
transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair
values or cash flows of hedged items.

@)

Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
designated and qualified as fair value hedges are
recorded in the income statement, together with any
changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability
that are attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, the adjustment to the carrying amount of
a hedged item for which the effective interest method
is used, is amortised to income statement over the
period to maturity.

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of
derivatives that are designated and qualified as cash
flow hedges are recognised in OCI and accumulated in
equity as hedging reserve. The gain or loss relating to
the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the
income statement.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to the
income statement in the periods in which the hedged
item will affect income statement.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or
when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in
equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised
when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised
in the income statement. When a forecast transaction
is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain
or loss that was reported in equity is immediately
transferred to the income statement.
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(c) Derivatives not qualified as hedges for accounting
purposes

Derivative instruments entered into as economic
hedges that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
held at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in the
fair value of any derivative instrument are recognised
immediately in the income statement.

2.10.0ffsetting financial instruments

2.1

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.

.Repossessed assets

Repossessed collateral assets are accounted as assets held
for sale and reported in “Other assets” and the relevant
loans are derecognised. The repossessed collateral assets
are measured at lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell.

2.12.Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker is the
person or group that allocates resources to and assesses
the performance of the operating segments of an entity. The
Group has determined the Chief Executive Officer as its chief
operating decision maker.
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2.13.Foreign currency translation

@)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (functional currency).
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000)
which is the Company’s functional and the Company’s
and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at period-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the income statement.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are
translated with the closing rate as at the reporting
date. Non-monetary items measured at historical cost
denominated in a foreign currency are translated with
the exchange rate as at the date of initial recognition;
non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are
measured at fair value are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.

In the case of changes in the fair value of monetary
assets denominated in foreign currency classified
as FVOCI, a distinction is made between translation
differences resulting from changes in amortised cost of
the security and other changes in the carrying amount
of the security. Translation differences related to
changes in the amortised cost are recognised in profit
or loss, and other changes in the carrying amount,
except impairment, are recognised in OCI.
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Translation differences on non-monetary financial
instruments held at FVPL are reported as part of the
fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-
monetary financial instruments classified as FVOCI, are
included in the fair value reserve in equity.

2.14.Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or are recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives.

shorter of the end of the useful life of
the right-of-use asset or the end of

Right-of-Use assets on
leased properties for

own use the lease term
Leasehold improvements over the unexpired period of the lease
Furniture and fixtures over the unexpired period of the lease
Computer three years
Office equipment three years
Motor vehicle four years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

Gain and loss on disposal is determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. It is included in the income
statement.
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2.15.Impairment of investment in subsidiaries

Impairment testing of the investment in a subsidiary is
required upon receiving a dividend from that subsidiary if
the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary concerned in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the subsidiary in the Company’s
statement of financial position exceeds the carrying amount
of the subsidiary’s net assets including goodwill in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

2.16.Current and deferred tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in OCI
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
OCl or directly in equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation and considers
whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept
an uncertain tax treatment. The Group measures its tax
balances either based on the most likely amount or the
expected value, depending on which method provides a
better prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. Deferred tax is
determined using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is
realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised where it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is
provided on temporary differences arising from investment
in the subsidiary, except where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the difference will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and where the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.17.Employee benefits

(@) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long-
service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of each reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave, maternity or
paternity leave are recognised when the absence
occurs.

(b) Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses, based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created constructive obligations.
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RATHKREE - sHEEAE and a defined contribution scheme, the assets of which
EBRTHAEVEEAMERZ are generally held in separate trustee-administered
BEE2RB  #%ZIRAReTEB funds. These pension plans are generally funded by
BHES RAREEMK - payments from employees and by the Group.
AEBE@FHIERTEETE & The Group’s contributions to the mandatory provident
FLTE M SR ET 2 A A B A R fund scheme and defined contribution scheme are
HIVEZH © expensed as incurred.
2.18.53%4% 2.18.Provisions

e 7 5= (B8 3R BRF R s 18 S 4 1 o RO A 22 Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present

SHERMF - METRERIEER legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events

&R - BRI & B 0ER @ Bl where it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources

R will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount has

been reliably estimated.

EeENRREXYEBENY - BE Where the effect of the time value of money is material,

BTEHEN BT S ABRTLATLL provisions are measured at the present value of the

(R E B T35 ¥ B AR E 2 B H expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation

BRER G FTE 2B ERFE - using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation.
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The Group recognises right-of-use assets at
the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the
date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use
assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Unless
the Group is reasonably certain to obtain
ownership of the leased asset at the end of the
lease term, the recognised right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease
term.

Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset's carrying amount
exceeds it recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use
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(iii)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the
Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over
the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments less any lease incentives receivable.
The lease payments also include the exercise
price of a purchase option reasonably certain
to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate.

In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not
readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased
to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there is a modification.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to its short-term leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the lease of low-
value assets recognition to leases of assets that
are considered as low value. Lease payments on
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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2.20.Cash and cash equivalents

2.21

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise balances with original maturities
of three months or less, including cash and balances with
banks that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

.Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Group
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for
a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts are accounted for as insurance
contracts in accordance with the accounting policies set out
in Note 2.22(b).

2.22.Insurance and other guarantee contracts

(@) Mortgage insurance contracts

The mortgage insurance business under the MIP of
the Group is accounted for on the annual accounting
basis. Under the annual accounting approach, the
Group makes provisions based on credible estimates
of future income and outgoings to determine the
underwriting result for the current accounting period.
The underwriting result includes any adjustments
arising from the correction of the previous estimates.

Gross premiums represent direct business written
through Authorized Institutions (Als) as defined in
accordance with the Banking Ordinance during an
accounting period. The gross premiums after deduction
of discounts and refunds, include the reinsurance
premiums to be paid to the approved reinsurers, the
risk premiums and servicing fees earned by the Group.
The net premiums are recognised as income on a
time-apportioned basis during the time the insurance
coverage is effective.
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Unearned premiums represent that portion of net
premiums written which are estimated to relate to risks
and services subsequent to the end of each reporting
period.

Provisions are made for outstanding claims, claims
incurred but not reported and loss reserve at the end
of each reporting period. For risk-sharing business,
50% or 75% of the net risk premiums earned in a year
depending on the respective product is set aside
as a Ccontingency Reserve for a period of time in
accordance with relevant regulatory guidelines and as
considered appropriate by the directors. Withdrawals
from the Contingency Reserve can be made to meet
excess claims at any time during the period. At the
end of the reporting period, the unutilised balance of
the Contingency Reserve can be released to retained
profits.

Reinsurance contracts refer to contracts entered into
by the Group with reinsurers under which the Group
is compensated for 10sses on one or more insurance
contracts issued by the Group. Benefits to which
the Group is entitled under its reinsurance contracts
held are recognised as reinsurance assets. These
assets consist of claims recoverable from reinsurers
and receivables that are dependent on the expected
claims and benefits arising under the related reinsured
insurance contracts. Amounts recoverable from or
due to reinsurers are measured consistently with the
amounts associated with the reinsured insurance
contracts and in accordance with the terms of each
reinsurance contract. Reinsurance assets are primarily
premiums for reinsurance contracts and are amortised
as an expense.

A reinsurance asset is impaired if there is objective
evidence, as a result of an event that occurred after
initial recognition of the reinsurance asset, that the
Group may not receive all amounts due to it under the
terms of the contract, and the impact on the amounts
that the Group will receive from the reinsurer can be
reliably measured.

commissions are recognised in the income statement
as incurred.
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Other guarantee and insurance contracts

The Group provides financial guarantees for loan
facilities provided to eligible small and medium
enterprises (SMEs), in return for a guarantee fee,
insurance coverage on reverse mortgage loans and
policy reverse mortgage loans provided to elderly
people, in return for an insurance premium.

50% of the guarantee fee earned and 75% of the
insurance premium earned in a year is set aside
as a contingency Reserve for a period of time in
accordance with relevant regulatory guidelines and as
considered by directors to be appropriate. Withdrawals
from the Contingency Reserve can be made to meet
excess claims at any time during the period. At the
end of the reporting period, the unutilised balance of
the Contingency Reserve can be released to retained
profits.

In respect of insurance coverage on reverse mortgage
loans, the Group entered into reinsurance contract
with a reinsurer. Reinsurance contracts refer to
contracts entered into by the Group with reinsurers
under which the Group is compensated for losses
on one or more insurance contracts issued by the
Group. Benefits to which the Group is entitled under
its reinsurance contracts held are recognised as
reinsurance assets. Reinsurance assets are primarily
premiums for reinsurance contracts and are amortised
as an expense.

A reinsurance asset is impaired if there is objective
evidence, as a result of an event that occurred after
initial recognition of the reinsurance asset, that the
Group may not receive all amounts due to it under the
terms of the contract, and the impact on the amounts
that the Group will receive from the reinsurer can be
reliably measured.
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(c) Life insurance contracts

Premiums are recognised as income when the cash is
received from the annuitant, and the policy is issued
and becomes effective after the completion of all the
underwriting procedures.

Insurance contract liabilities are recognised when
contracts are entered into and premiums are
recognised. These liabilities are measured by using
the Modified Net Level Premium Valuation method for
long term business in accordance with the provision of
the Insurance (Determination of Long Term Liabilities)
Rules. The movements in liabilities at each reporting
date are recorded in the income statement.

Insurance claims reflect the cost of all annuity
payments, surrenders, withdrawals and death claims
arising during the year. Surrenders, withdrawals and
death claims are recorded on the basis of notifications
received. Annuity payments are recorded when due.

The Group will assess if its recognised liabilities are adequate
on each reporting date, using the current estimates of
future cash flows under these contracts. If the assessment
shows that the carrying amount of its insurance liabilities are
inadequate in the light of the estimated future cash flows,
the shortfall shall be recognised in the income statement.

2.23.Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared,
being appropriately authorised and no longer at the
discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting
period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.
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3.

Financial risk management

3.1. Strategy in using financial instruments

The major activities of the Group are (i) to purchase portfolios
of mortgages or loans; (i) to raise financing for its purchase
of assets through issuance of debt securities; (iii) to develop
infrastructure financing business; (iv) to provide mortgage
insurance cover in respect of mortgage loans and reverse
mortgage loans originated by participating lenders and
secured on residential properties in Hong Kong, life insurance
policies and other assets, if applicable; (v) to operate a
scheme for the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (Government) providing guarantee
on loans advanced by participating lenders for local SMES
and to operate a scheme for the Government providing 100%
guarantee on loans advanced by participating lenders for
unemployed individuals; and (vi) to offer life annuity products
in or from Hong Kong. By their nature, the Group's activities
are principally related to the use of financial instruments
including cash, loans, debts, investments, and derivatives.

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks and those activities involve the analysis, evaluation,
acceptance and management of some degree of risk
or combination of risks. The Group manages the risks
in a prudent manner in sustaining the Group’s financial
performance.

The Corporate Risk Management Committee is set up at
group level to provide oversight of the enterprise-wide
risk matters including financial and non-financial risks.
The policies and limits for various risks are monitored and
reviewed regularly by various management committees
of the Company, including Infrastructure Financing and
Securitisation Investment Committee (IFSIC), Credit
Committee, Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO),
Transaction Approval Committee (TAC), Environmental,
Social and Governance (ESG) Committee, and Operational
Risk Committee (ORC) which report to the Corporate Risk
Management Committee.
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The IFSIC executes oversight and approval authority
over all investments in infrastructure loans. The Credit
Committee oversees the credit policies and standards for
asset acquisition. The ALCO oversees the implementation
of market risk management and investment guidelines
approved by the Board of Directors. The TAC conducts an in-
depth analysis of pricing economics and associated risks for
business transactions, whilst taking into consideration the
latest market conditions and business strategies approved
by the Board. The ESG Committee is established to direct
and oversee the development and implementation of ESG
strategy having regard to the relevant requirements and
guidelines. The ORC is responsible for ensuring that all
business entities and line functions maintain an effective
operational risk and internal control framework. The ORC is
also responsible for providing directions and resolving issues
related to policies, controls and management of operational
issues referred to by line functions, as well as ensuring
prompt and appropriate corrective action in response to
audit findings related to operational risks or internal controls.
In addition, Group Internal Audit Department is responsible
for the independent review of the internal control systems of
the Group.

The Group established Longevity Risk Committee to manage
longevity risk of the Group. Its duties include approving
longevity risk management policies and hedging transactions
and reviewing longevity experiences and exposures of the
Group. It also monitors and analyses the general trend,
technological changes and their implications for human
longevity.

In respect of general insurance business, a Risk Committee
is established by HKMC Insurance Limited (HKMCI) as an
independent oversight committee to assist its Board to
oversee implementation of risk management framework
and manage all risks faced by the HKMCI. For HKMC Annuity
Limited (HKMCA), a Risk Committee is established to
manage the enterprise-wide risk matters, including financial
and non-financial risks.

The most important types of risks are credit risk, market risk
which includes currency risk, interest rate risk and equity
price risk, liquidity risk and insurance risk.
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3.2. Creditrisk

The Group's principal financial assets are its cash and short-
term funds, investment securities, placements with the
Exchange Fund, loan portfolio and loans with special 100%
guarantee under the SFGS. The credit risk on liquid funds and
investment securities is limited because the credit ratings
of the counterparties, mainly sovereigns, quasi-sovereign
agencies, banks and companies, should meet the minimum
requirement in accordance with the investment guidelines
approved by the Board of Directors. The capital of the
HKMCA and the HKMCI as well as premium receipts of the
HKMCA are placed with the Exchange Fund managed by the
Hong Kong Monetary Authority (HKMA). The credit risk on
the placements with the Exchange Fund is very limited as it
is exposure to the Government. Regarding loans with special
100% guarantee under the SFGS, the credit default risk of the
loans is fully guaranteed by the Government.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its loan
portfolio, which is the risk that a loan borrower will be unable
to pay amounts in full when due. The Group therefore has a
prudent policy for managing its exposure to credit risk.

To maintain the quality of the loan portfolios, the Group
adheres to a prudent risk management framework to (i)
select Approved Sellers with established criteria, (i) adopt
prudent asset purchasing criteria, (iii) conduct effective
and in-depth due diligence reviews, (iv) implement robust
project structures and financing documentation, (v) perform
an ongoing monitoring and reviewing mechanism, and
(vi) ensure adequate protection for higher-risk assets or
transactions.

The Group undertakes ongoing credit review with special
attention paid to problem loans. Business units will monitor
these loans and take recovery action such as establishing
relief plan with borrowers in order to maximise recoveries.
Loan impairment assessment is performed regularly and
impairment allowance is charged to income statement in
accordance with the guidelines approved by the Credit
Committee.
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Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Group has implemented guidelines on the acceptability
of specific classes of collateral on credit risk mitigation,
which are subject to regular review.

Loan portfolio and loans with special 100% guarantee under
the SFGS

The principal collateral types for mortgage portfolio mainly
consist of properties located in Hong Kong. For hire purchase
receivable, the collateral types include taxi and public
light bus licenses. Mortgage portfolio and hire purchase
receivable are generally fully secured by collateral. The
current collateral value of properties is determined with
the use of public indices on a portfolio basis. The principal
collateral types for infrastructure loan portfolio mainly
consist of security interests in the assets of the borrowers
and assignment of key project documents and/or charge
over bank accounts but the actual security varies projects
to projects. For microfinance loans, no collateral is generally
sought.

Regarding loans with special 100% guarantee under the
SFGS, no collateral is sought as the credit default risk of the
loans is fully guaranteed by the Government. Please refer to
Note 17 for more details.

Time deposits with banks, investment securities and
placements with the Exchange Fund

Collaterals are generally not sought for time deposits with
banks as the exposures are considered to be low risk due
to the nature of the counterparties and short-term maturity.
Investment securities and placements with the Exchange
Fund are generally unsecured.
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Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into ISDA master agreement with all
counterparties for derivative transactions where each party
will be able to settle all outstanding amounts on a net basis
in the event of default of the other party. The Group also
executed Credit Support Annex (CSA) with all counterparties
in conjunction with the master agreement. Under CSA,
collateral is passed between the parties to mitigate the
counterparty risk inherent in outstanding positions.

For financial instruments such as derivatives, exposures
are monitored against counterparty risk limits established
in accordance with the investment guidelines and credit
risk policy of the Group. These counterparty risk limits
are subject to regular review by the Credit Committee
on an annual basis. At any one time, the amount subject
to counterparty risk is limited to the current fair value of
instruments favourable to the Group (i.e. assets with positive
fair value), which in relation to derivatives is only a small
fraction of the contract, or notional values used to express
the volume of instruments outstanding. This counterparty
risk exposure is managed as part of the overall credit limits
with counterparties, together with potential exposures from
market movements.

Mortgage insurance contracts, other guarantee and
insurance contracts

The details are disclosed in Note 3.5.

Settlement risk arises in any situation where a payment in
cash, securities or equities is made in the expectation of a
corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities. Daily
settlement limits are established for each counterparty to
cover the aggregate of all settlement risk arising from the
Group's market transactions on any single day.
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Expected credit loss (ECL) measurement

For financial assets, the following credit risk modelling
applies:

The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there
is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. It considers available reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information with the following indicators
incorporated:

o external credit rating (as far as available);

o actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
borrower’s ability to meet its obligations;

o significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same borrower;

o significant changes in the value of the collateral
supporting the obligation or in the quality of third-party
guarantees or credit enhancements; and

o significant changes in the expected performance and
behaviour of the borrower, including changes in the
payment status of borrowers in the group and changes
in the financial conditions of the borrower.
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A three-stage approach to measuring ECLS is applied on
loan portfolio, cash and short-term funds and investment
securities accounted for at amortised cost and FVOCI.
Financial assets migrate through the following three stages
based on the change in credit quality since initial recognition:

Stage 1: 12-month ECLS

For exposures where there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition and that are
not credit impaired upon origination, the portion of the
lifetime ECL associated with the probability of default events
occurring within the next 12 months is recognised.

Stage 2: Lifetime ECLs — not credit impaired

For credit exposures where there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition but that are not
credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised.

Stage 3: Lifetime ECLs — credit impaired

Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired when
one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred.
For financial assets that have become credit impaired, a
lifetime ECL is recognised and interest income is calculated
by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost
(net of impairment provision) rather than the gross carrying
amount.

ECLs are derived from unbiased and probability-weighted
estimates of expected loss. The amount of the ECLS is
recognised using an impairment allowance account with the
movement in this account charged to income statement.
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At initial recognition, impairment allowance is required for
ECLs resulting from default events that are possible within
the next 12 months (12-month ECLS). At each reporting
date, the Group assesses whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk for financial assets since
initial recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring
over the expected life between the reporting date and
the date of initial recognition. In the event of a significant
increase in credit risk, impairment allowance is required
from all possible default events over the expected life of
the financial assets (Lifetime ECLS). If, in a subsequent
period, credit quality improves and reverses any previously
assessed significant increase in credit risk since origination,
then the impairment allowance reverts from lifetime ECLS to
12-month ECLS.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage
in a repayment plan with the Group. Loans are written off
after all the necessary procedures have substantially been
completed and the amount of the loss has been determined.
Where loans have been written off, the Group continues
to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover
the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are
recognised in profit or loss.

Interest and remittance receivables, deposits and other
assets are also subject to the impairment requirements
of HKFRS 9, and the identified impairment allowance was
immaterial.

EHREWEERAT —T-——FF% 185



SmEBEHRERMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AEERERZEEERARS /=
B ARINATHEE & BRI ERER

fE

@ WIEREEFRAETHNESD
BERBEER

PN EE 7 B - B E K
HEFRH 2 EER -  N&H
2 = {EAR Bl )R B 5% % B XY

EERE

5RR:

s

s

FEFRER -

FE=PEER :

ERERERD
RERRE R AT E R
BfERAB RS
BENETAEMNR

DB
EFineE °

B EBANKRE
& = f K 1 12 40
VER - MRS
AR & B H A
INMFIORZELOK ©

BIEERR KR
B FE KA
SR NEB
60RH) B 3K
RITORXED
BAEHER -

The Group uses three categories for loans which reflect their
credit risk and how the loan loss provision is determined for
each of those categories.

(@  Loans with special 100% guarantee under the SFGS

These loans are fully guaranteed by the Government as
detailed in Note 17. The Group uses three categories
for loans which reflect their credit risk:

Stage 1: It represents performing loans with low risk
of default and the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet contractual cash flows.

Stage 2: It represents loans with significant increase
in credit risk since the moment of acquisition,
for example there is interest or principal
payment overdue between 30 days and 60
days.

Stage 3: It represents loans with significant increase in
credit risk with interest or principal payment
overdue for over 60 days, or loans with
default notice submitted by banks.
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Given the default loss of these loans are fully
guaranteed, no impairment allowance is recognised in
view of the minimal default risk of the Government.

F—MEE FoMEE E=ER B
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

FER TR FHET TR

As at 31 December 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

87,775,033 914,575 1,472,627 90,162,235

WREAE Gross carrying amount
BB R Impairment allowance
IR E {8 Carrying amount

87,775,033 914,575 1,472,627 90,162,235

RZE_—F+=-A=+—H
As at 31 December 2021

E—FER FZPEER F=[EER “azE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
FHTT FHIT FATT FATT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

70,525,852 214,994 322,308 71,063,154

IR E Gross carrying amount
RER Impairment allowance
MREE Carrying amount

70,525,852 214,994 322,308 71,063,154
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Stage 1

F_PEER

Stage 2

E=FER

Stage 3

Write-off

(b)  Loan portfolio

= 0 &

A summary of the assumptions underpinning the

Group's ECL model on loans is as follows:

HRINES
Definition of category

ERAZNRRRE - B ERHENE

TANBEERE -

Borrowers have a low risk of default and
a strong capacity to meet contractual
cash flows.

EXNEERBRAEEM: WHE
R/SAREEZBEHEBI0OK - AR
TEREE R EZEIEN o

Loans for which there is a significant
increase in credit risk; as significant
increase in credit risk is presumed if
interest and/or principal repayments
are more than 30 days past due.

FMER/ RS EZEEOKX - BX
ABRES B3 -

Interest and/or principal repayments
are 90 days past due, borrowers with
bankruptcy or properties repossessed.

WA BTEE AR a8 K&,
There is no reasonable expectation of
recovery on the delinquent interest
and/or principal repayments.
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12-month ECLs (Where the expected
lifetime of an asset is less than 12
months, expected losses are measured at
its expected lifetime.)
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Lifetime ECLs — not credit impaired
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Lifetime ECLs — credit impaired

Asset is written off



AW EETERT  AEHE
HAFBENEAEERY NS
B HEAT - A ERSR SN ERE LR
NG B A] B 2 BUREBOR(E &
BATER  AEERERR
1E2A »

EEFRHBRA - ARERKEA
BHEEEEEEEEE A
HEEERR - i ERY
EEEEXE  A&EEZEES
BEFHEHENELEBERE - I
IR E B BEBUREHL

% o

R pRETRBENAE
B ERERKEM(HBE
Yt R Ko NV E SR

AEBEC R FERIBER IR
A A EXERTfl B0 7H BB FE IR 3K
RAETEEBHER - 21
(R 4% 7 I HAPE B 0 B S R A
VAETTRI G » IR S AT =
EEZREKBERLERER
ERHERMAEERR - &
HIRE 2R TH EL A AT R 4 7 3B B
B M P2 MO R 0 I T 15
gGtE -

SR ERR B EEF AR EE
EXmME  ARECRE2IK
AERT = ~ AB R R BV 4R
% BETEEE  AUE BT
MR R EMF R ER - B
EIERE - EEEFIRTRIE
ST IARAR » B HilE B &R IA
REZANBUEEZEERER
TNV -

However, in certain cases, the Group will also consider
a loan to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any enhancements held by
the Group.

Over the term of the loans, the Group accounts for
its credit risk by appropriately providing for ECLS on
a timely basis. In calculating the ECL rates, the Group
considers historical loss rates for each category
of loan portfolio, and adjusts for forward-looking
macroeconomic data.

Loan portfolio consists of residential mortgage
portfolio, infrastructure loans and others which are hire
purchase receivable and microfinance loans.

The Group have adopted a range of economic cycle
stages for the assessment of mortgage loans and
hire purchase receivable assessed by portfolio base.
Probabilities are assigned to different economic
cycle stages for the assessment. Based on market
outlook, Credit Committee members form a view
on the likelihood of each economic cycle stage. The
default probability is based on the weighted average
of likelihood of different economic cycle stage and the
corresponding default probability.

For infrastructure loans assessed by individual project
base, the Group have selected a forward-looking view
based on outlook of global economy, relevant regional
economic indicators, specific industry data, and
taking into consideration of the impact of any special
events. Infrastructure loans are rated under various
scenarios. The probability table is set up to determine
the probability of each scenario under each forward-
looking view.
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The following table contains an analysis of the credit
risk exposure of loan portfolio for which impairment
allowance is recognised.

FEPEER
Stage 2

FHET
HK$'000

F=REE
Stage 3

FHET
HK$'000

R-EB-_—_H+=-A=+-—H
As at 31 December 2022

IR E 48 B Gross carrying amount
F=EHIBEZ4E4S Residential mortgage
portfolio 3,766,112 9,781 5,222 3,781,115
JERIEEZHAS  Non-mortgage portfolio
HEEH Infrastructure loans 7,576,696 = - 7,576,696
Hi Others 109,334 9 2,978 112,321
11,452,142 9,790 8,200 11,470,132
Sl (B B 4 Impairment allowance
FEiREE 44 Residential mortgage
portfolio (564) = - (564)
FERIBE A Non-mortgage portfolio
HEE Infrastructure loans (12,522) = = (12,522)
Hh Others (136) (5) (1,447) (1,588)
(13,222) (5) (1,447) (14,674)
MREE Carrying amount 11,438,920 9,785 6,753 11,455,458

—PEER —PEER
Stage 1 Stage 2
FET FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE=[EER FERE]
Stage 3 Total
FHIT FATT
HK$'000 HK$'000

R—E—_—F+=-A=+—H
As at 31 December 2021

BT Gross carrying amount
FEZIEEFH4ES Residential mortgage

portfolio 3,608,623 7,829 6,611 3,623,063
ERBERHES  Non-mortgage portfolio
HEZER Infrastructure loans 4,813,509 - - 4,813,509
HAith Others 138,152 = 1,565 139,717
8,560,284 7,829 8,176 8,576,289
B Impairment allowance
FEIRIBEFRHEA Residential mortgage
portfolio (120) - - (120)
B E AR Non-mortgage portfolio
HEZER Infrastructure loans (4,707) - - (4,707)
Hith Others (138) = (511) (649)
(4,965) - (511) (5,476)
IREE Carrying amount 8,555,319 7,829 7,665 8,570,813
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Fﬁg::i—i—* A=+—8H The impairment allowance for loan portfolio as at 31
BB SR & R (B 1 B AR R December 2022 reconciles to the opening impairment
fﬁﬁéﬁzéﬂpﬁﬁuT : allowance as follows:

E-REBE FEoER E=RER HMEE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

TATT TAT TAET TR
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R-ZZ——F—H Impairment allowance as

—H E’]ﬁcﬁ}ﬁ{% at 1 January 2021 1,949 - 507 2,456
DEEEME R NER Loans purchased and
repayment 2,953 - - 2,953
FEEREEIFTELR  Net measurement of
BEFTEFE impairment arising
from changes of stage - - 104 104
HiEER ﬁﬁ@}ﬁﬁ Movement due to
EA e changes in credit risk 63 - - 63
e ﬂi}vhﬁﬁg%ﬁ Recoveries of loans not
written-off - - (100) (100)

3,016 = 4 3,020
EREE R Transfer to stage 2 = - _ _
%%%%%JE?EX Transfer to stage 3 = _ _ _
g Write-offs - - _ _

R=—ZE=—4%+= 8 Impairment allowance
= +—HHRIE as at 31 December

B (FIzE18) 2021 (Note 18) 4,965 - 511 5,476
D EERNE R &ER Loans purchased and
repayment 7,815 - - 7,815
FEERSAENFTAEER  Net measurement of
BB 258 impairment arising
from change of stage - 5 = 5
RIEERBRZEHM Movement due to
EENEE changes in credit risk 442 - 1,087 1,529
UEE S 6 iGN Recoveries of loans not
written-off - - (67) 67)

8,257 5 1,020 9,282
L EE R Transfer to stage 2 = - _ _
%%%:Kt%_ﬁé?ﬁx Transfer to stage 3 = - - _
6 Write-offs = - (84) (84)

R=ZE=—F+4= A Impairment allowance
=+—HWEE as at 31 December

BE (M=t 18) 2022 (Note 18) 13,222 5 1,447 14,674
BB EREE Charge of loan
impairment allowance 8,257 5 1,020 9,282
B IURIE R RIE R E Write back of loan
o] 3% commitment
impairment allowance (1,589) - - (1,589)
W [B1 2 il $H & 5K Recoveries of loans
previously written-off - - (191) (191)
NIEXERAMWEE Total charge of
BiEEE impairment
(BFzE12) allowance
recognised in profit
or loss (Note 12) 6,668 5 829 7,502
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(c)  Cash and short-term funds

The impairment allowance for cash and short-term
funds as at 31 December 2022 reconciles to the
opening impairment allowance as follows:

FET
HK$'000

R-T——F— A —BrREREE Impairment allowance as at 1 January 2021 2,246
BRI s ER A RV E B = &) Change in the impairment allowance recognised

(fizE12) in profit or loss during the period (Note 12) 2,641
RZZE-_—F+-_A=+—HHEME Impairment allowance as at 31 December 2021

s (fH=E14) (Note 14) 4,887
HRNRERERNREREE Change in the impairment allowance recognised

(fizE12) in profit or loss during the period (Note 12) (1,783)
R-EBE-—F+-A=1+—HH Impairment allowance as at

RERE (M 14) 31 December 2022 (Note 14) 3,104
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According to the approved investment guidelines, the
Group can only place deposits with note-issuing banks
or banks with a certain minimum credit rating.

The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on the external credit rating of each
counterparty and the corresponding historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
macroeconomic data to determine the ECLs for
impairment allowance. The Group has selected a range
of possible economic outcomes, based on outlook of
global economy and relevant economic indicators,
taking into consideration the impact of any special
events, as the most suitable views to the portfolio.
A probability rate table is set up to determine the
probability rate for the forward-looking views.

All of these financial assets are considered to be low
risk in view of all deposit banks are rated at investment
grade by rating agencies, and thus the impairment
allowance recognised during the period was limited
to 12-month ECLs for stage 1. During the year, the
decrease in the impairment allowance was mainly due
to the decrease in deposits with banks and there was
no transfer to stages 2 and 3.
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As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the
minimum acceptable short-term credit ratings are A-2
(Standard and Poor’s), P-2 (Moody's) and F-2 (Fitch’s).

Investment securities

According to the approved investment guidelines, the
Group can only invest in debt securities with a certain
minimum credit rating. The proportion of investments
according to rating categories is monitored and
reviewed by ALCO.

The table below presents an analysis of debt securities
by rating classification as at the end of the reporting
period, based on external credit agency’s ratings
(Standard and Poor’s, Moody’s and Fitch’s). In the
absence of issue-specific ratings, the ratings for the
issuers are reported.

AT EEE R SRR AR

STARMEE FIIRMERRE

WEHEFERE Investment

Investment  securities at
securities at amortised k]
FVOCI cost Total
RZEBE-—#4+=-A=+—H TER THERT THER
As at 31 December 2022 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA/Aaa AAA/Aaa - 404,859 404,859
AA-ZF AA+/Aa3 E Aal AA- to AA+/Aa3 10 Aa1 1,048,417 4,398,237 5,446,654
A-ZEA+/A3ZE AT A- 10 A+/A3 10 A1 196,557 8,344,562 8,541,119
Rk Total 1,244,974 13,147,658 14,392,632

AR FEZE T SRR

STAEMEE FIRKESEE

EHIRE Investment

Investment securities at
securities at amortised Fake]
FVOCI cost Total
RZE-_—F+-_A=+—H FHETT FHTT FHETT
As at 31 December 2021 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA/Aaa AAA/Aaa 138,123 775,957 914,080
AA-Z AA+/Aa3 E Aal AA- to AA+/Aa3 10 Aa 2,458,519 2,169,524 4,628,043
A-EA+/A3EAT A- 10 A+/A3 10 A1 1,050,540 8,265,403 9,315,943
Fk] Total 3,647,182 11,210,884 14,858,066
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TRFEEERBERBEHE The following table contains an analysis of the credit
FIRENEERBR DT - INHE risk exposure of investment securities for which
A WEEREE _EERRE impairment allowance is recognised. There was no
=FEER © transfer to stages 2 and 3 during the period.

F-BER FRR F=ER

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
R-ZB-—&+-A=+—H FEx TEx TET
As at 31 December 2022 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
IRE4AE Gross carrying amount
— URFEREFFA  —FVOCI
Hih 2 HEE= 1,244,974 - - 1,244,974
— JREE S AR AN 0 — amortised cost 13,147,658 - - 13,147,658
RERE Impairment allowance
— RE R ATIR  — amortised cost (4,582) - = (4,582)
WREE Carrying amount
—UAFEEEA  —FVOCI
Hih 2 HE = 1,244,974 - - 1,244,974
— R ARSIk —amortised cost 13,143,076 - - 13,143,076
14,388,050 - - 14,388,050
E—FEE FE[EER F=PEER pck
NERCH Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
RZZEZ—F+=ZA=+—H FHET FET FHIT FHT
As at 31 December 2021 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
IREAE Gross carrying amount
— UAFEE{E A —FVOC
Hh 2 E R 3,647,182 - - 3,647,182
— JR SN AR AN B 0 — amortised cost 11,210,884 - - 11,210,884
BB Impairment allowance
— JREE S R AN 0 — amortised cost (3,892) - - (3,892
IREE Carrying amount
— UA¥EE/E A —FVOC
Hith 2 E s 3,647,182 - - 3,647,182
— IR AGIR  — amortised cost 11,206,992 - - 11,206,992

14,854,174 = = 14,854,174
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The impairment allowance for investment securities
as at 31 December 2022 reconciles to the opening
impairment allowance as follows:

E—MEE EZIEE B HE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

TAT TAT TAT TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

W=Z=——%F—H—H Impairment allowance as at

B Rk (B R 1 1 January 2021
— URFEE{EA —FVOC
Hih 2wz 1,498 - - 1,498
— ISR ARTIR  — amortised cost 3,422 - - 3,422
HANMERERN Change in the impairment
REREES) allowance recognised
in profit or loss
during the period
— UARAFEE{GA —FVOC
Hih 2wz (737) - - (737)
— ISR AR BIR  — amortised cost 470 = = 470
R-ZE-—%F+=HF Impairment allowance as at
=+—BHRERE 31 December 2021
—URAFEE{LEA —FVOCl
Hih 2wz 761 - - 761
— I SHAARBIR  — amortised cost
(BF=E19(0) (Note 19(c)) 3,892 - - 3,892
HRR B ERE Change in the impairment
REREES) allowance recognised
in profit or loss
during the period
— ARFEEE{E A —FVOCI (Note 12)
Hip2Elas
(B¥zE12) (363) - = (363)
— IR AR — amortised cost (Note 12)
(PiFEE12) 690 - - 690
R=ZF==—%#+=H Impairment allowance
=+—HHRERHE asat 31 December
2022
— UAFEZ{FA —FVOCI
Hih 2 ks 398 - - 398
— REERATIR  — Amortised cost
(BiFEE19(c)) (Note 19(c)) 4,582 = = 4,582
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() Investment securities at amortised cost

Investment securities at amortised cost
include listed and unlisted debt securities. The
impairment allowance on investment securities
at amortised cost as at 31 December 2022
reconciles to the opening impairment allowance
as follows:

TR
HK$'000

N2 —F— H—AHEERE  Impairment allowance as at 1 January 2021 3,422
HIRNR B ER AR EREE Change in the impairment allowance
(FizE12) recognised in profit or loss
during the period (Note 12) 470
R-EBE-_—F+__A=1+—HH Impairment allowance as at
B R (FE19(0) 31 December 2021 (Note 19(c)) 3,892
HIANR B ER AR EREE Change in the impairment allowance
(PftzE12) recognised in profit or loss
during the period (Note 12) 690
R-ZE-_—_F+=-A=+—HH Impairment allowance as at
RE R (R 19(c)) 31 December 2022 (Note 19(c)) 4,582
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The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on the external credit rating of each
counterparty and the corresponding historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking macroeconomic data to determine the
ECLs for impairment allowance. The Group has
selected a range of possible economic outcomes,
based on outlook of global economy and relevant
economic indicators, taking into consideration
the impact of any special events, as the most
suitable views to the portfolio. A probability rate
table is set up to determine the probability rate
for the forward-looking views.
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All of these investment securities carried at
amortised cost are considered with no significant
increase in credit risk as at 31 December 2022,
and thus the impairment allowance recognised
for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
limited to 12-months ECLS under Stage 1.
During the year, the increase in the impairment
allowance was mainly due to the increase in
investment securities at amortised cost.

(i) Investment securities at FVOCI

Investment securities at FVOCI include listed
and unlisted debt securities. The impairment
allowance on investment securities at FVOCI as
at 31 December 2022 reconciles to the opening
impairment allowance as follows:

FHT
HK$°000

R-E-——F— A — B RERE
HARRMB 25 R R E B e

Impairment allowance as at 1 January 2021 1,498
Change in the impairment allowance

recognised in profit or loss

during the period (737)

W-_ZT-_—%+-A=+—H
REA 2 RS ERRERE
HARERERNRERGEED

(BzE12)

Impairment allowance recognised in OCI

as at 31 December 2021 761
Change in the impairment allowance

recognised in profit or loss

during the period (Note 12) (363)

R-B--H+-A=+-—H
RE A2 WS R AR E R E

Impairment allowance recognised
in OCI as at 31 December 2022 398
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The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on the external credit rating of each
counterparty and the corresponding historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking macroeconomic data to determine the
ECLs for impairment allowance. The Group has
selected a range of possible economic outcomes,
based on outlook of global economy and relevant
economic indicators, taking into consideration
the impact of any special events, as the most
suitable views to the portfolio. A probability rate
table is set up to determine the probability rate
for the forward-looking views.

All of these financial assets are considered to
be low risk in view of all investment securities
at FVOCI are rated at investment grade by rating
agencies, and thus the impairment allowance
recognised for the year ended 31 December
2022 was limited to 12-month ECLS under Stage 1.
During the year, the decrease in the impairment
allowance was mainly due to the decrease in
investment securities at FVOCI.

In preparing the ECL, Credit Committee had formed
three forward-looking views based on market
conditions, real economies and a designated period of
historical macroeconomic variables for three scenarios.
The good view assumed a high probability of optimistic
scenario outcome whereas the bad view assumed a
high probability of pessimistic scenario outcome. A
designated period of historical data that covers peaks
and troughs of economic cycles were selected to
ensure the selection of scenarios stays unbiased.
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— Normal view

— Good view

The weightings assigned to each economic scenario,
base, pessimistic and optimistic as at 31 December
2022, were maintained at the same weightings as at
31 December 2021 in view of market conditions, for
the Group's infrastructure loans, deposits and debt
investments, of which the impairment allowance is
provided based on credit ratings (either external or
internal) and forms the majority of total impairment
allowance.

Sensitivity analysis of ECL

The Group applies three alternative macro-economic
scenarios (base, pessimistic and optimistic scenarios)
on the forward-looking views to reflect probability-
weighted range of possible future outcomes in
estimating ECL. The table below provides approximate
levels of provisions of impairment under the
normal, bad and good forward-looking views for the
infrastructure loans, deposits and debt investment
portfolio of the Group:

2022 2021
EREHEE Z2WEAGEE
ERSBHSE EEZFIHSE

Amount
change from
the reported

Amount
change from
the reported

ECL ECL
FET FHTT

HK$'000 HK$'000

B, CRd) i Ok
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)

(7,701) (8,010)

(9,355) (9,874)
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(f)  Maximum exposures to credit risk before taking
into account of collateral held or other credit
enhancements are analysed as follows:

The maximum exposures to credit risk of the financial
assets of the Group are equal to their gross carrying
amounts. The maximum exposures to credit risk of
the off-balance sheet exposures of the Group before
taking into account of reinsurance arrangements are
as follows:

2021

TAT
HK$'000

[R5 (R 4B RE Total risk-in-force

— IRIB R ETS — mortgage insurance business 110,633,356 88,917,190

— TERIRBETR — reverse mortgage business 23,321,095 18,660,656
133,954,451 107,577,846

(80 Credit-impaired loans

2022 2021
FEx FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEERHEE B Gross impaired loan portfolio 2,978 511
BEBRFNEFRERE Allowance for loan impairment in
— E=FEE respect of such advances — Stage 3 (1,447) (511)
1,531 -

RZEZZF+ZA=+—
B FERBEFRHEHEITES
BERBEEFR (== —F:
) o FHMEERRERER - B
ZREBEETEFERERR -

There were no credit-impaired loans for the residential
mortgage portfolio as at 31 December 2022 (2021: nil).
Allowance for loan impairment is assessed after taking
into account of collateral held for impaired loans.
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(h)  Repossessed properties

The Group obtained assets by taking possession of
collateral held as security.

Repossessed properties are sold as soon as
practicable, with the proceeds used to reduce the
outstanding indebtedness and are classified in the
statement of financial position within “Other assets”. If
excess funds arise after repayment of the outstanding
indebtedness, they are distributed to the beneficiaries
of the assets under the applicable laws.

3.3. Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risks, which is the
risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market risks arise from open positions in interest rate,
currency and equity products, all of which are exposed to
general and specific market movements and changes in the
level of volatility of market rates or prices such as interest
rates, credit spreads, foreign exchange rates and equity
prices. The Group’s exposures to market risk primarily arise
from the interest rate management of the entity’s financial
instruments of different repricing characteristics, or from the
net exposure of the foreign currency denominated financial
instruments. The Group hedges a major proportion of its
existing interest rate risk of the fixed-rate bond issuance
using fair value hedges in the form of interest rate swaps
by swapping into floating-rate funding to better match the
floating-rate assets. The Group also hedges the net exposure
of the foreign-currency denominated debts issued and
assets by the use of cross-currency swaps as fair value
hedges and economic hedges respectively.
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The management of market risk is principally undertaken
by the Treasury Department using risk limits approved
by the Board of Directors. Strategies on interest rate
risk management, financing, hedging, investments are
formulated by ALCO. Regular meetings are held to review
the latest conditions in the financial markets and the asset-
liability portfolio mix. The Treasury Department is responsible
for monitoring financial market movements and executing
transactions in the cash, derivatives, debt and investment
markets in accordance with the strategies laid down by
ALCO. The middle office monitors the compliance of risk
limits and performs stress tests to assess the potential size
of losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The results
of the stress tests are reviewed by ALCO.

A principal part of the interest rate risk management is to
monitor the sensitivity of projected net interest income
under different interest rate scenarios and to mitigate the
negative impact through hedging operations. A 20 basis
points parallel downward shift of the interest rate curve as at
31 December 2022 would decrease the future net interest
income for the next twelve months by less than HK$1 million
(2021: HK$18 million) and increase by less than HK$1 million
(2021: HK$15 million) for a similar upward parallel shift.

As at 31 December 2022, if interest rates at that date had
experienced a 20 basis points parallel shift downwards, profit
for the year would have been higher by around HK$51 million
(2021: HK$76 million) and the fair value reserve would have
been higher by around HK$14 million (2021: HK$6 million) as
at 31 December 2022. If interest rates had experienced a 20
basis points parallel shift upwards, profit for the year would
have been lower by HK$51 million (2021: HK$75 million) and
the fair value reserve would have been lower by around
HK$14 million (2021: HK$6 million).
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As at 31 December 2022, with all other variables held
constant, if the Hong Kong dollars had weakened by 100
price interest points against the US dollars, profit for the
year would have been around HK$8 million higher (2021:
HK$12 million). Conversely, if the Hong Kong dollars had
strengthened by 100 price interest points against the US
dollars, profit for the year would have been around HK$8
million lower (2021: HK$12 million).

As at 31 December 2022, with all other variables held
constant, if the Hong Kong dollars had weakened by 100
price interest points against foreign currencies other than US
dollars, profit for the year would have been higher by HK$0.4
million (2021: HK$25 million). Conversely, if the Hong Kong
dollars had strengthened by 100 price interest points against
foreign currencies other than US dollars, profit for the year
would have been lower by HK$0.4 million (2021: HK$25
million).

The Group is exposed to financial risk arising from changes
in the rate of return on the placements with the Exchange
Fund, which is set annually (the placements include
Investment Portfolio which rate of return will reset in January
while the return of Long-Term Growth Portfolio will only be
available in March in the following year). As at 31 December
2022, if there were an increase/decrease of 0.1% in the
current year rate of return, it is estimated that, with all
other variables held constant, the Group’s income from the
placements with the Exchange Fund would have increased/
decreased by approximately HK$29 million (2021: HK$24
million).
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As at 31 December 2022, with all other variables held
constant, if the price of exchange-traded funds and real
estate investment trusts had decreased by 1%, profit for the
year would have been around HK$0.1 million lower (2021:
HK$0.1 million). Conversely, if the price of exchange-traded
funds and real estate investment trusts had increased by 1%,
profit for the year would have been around HK$0.1 million
higher (2021: HK$0.1 million).

The increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates, exchange rates and equity prices for a 12-month
period.

(@) Foreign currency exposure

The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations
in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rate on
its financial position and cash flows. The Board sets
allowable currencies for investment purposes. The
ALCO sets limits on the currency exposure that may be
undertaken, which is monitored daily. At funding side,
the multi-currency feature of the MTN programme
enables the Group to issue notes in major currencies,
including US dollars, renminbi, Singapore dollars, British
pounds, Australian dollars, Euro and Japanese yen. All
foreign currency-denominated debts are hedged into
Hong Kong dollars or US dollars.
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The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to
foreign currency exchange rate risk. Included in the
tables are the assets and liabilities at carrying amounts,

D e

categorised by currency.

BT EyH

Hity b
Other foreign

currencies
TERT
HK$'000

THT
HK$'000

THET
HK$'000

aE

Total
TERT
HK$'000

R-ZB-—%+=H Asat 31 December 2022

=+-H
SREE Financial assets
ReREHES Cash and short-term funds 34,343,829 151,046 30,5097 34,525,384
U B R B3R Interest and remittance

receivables 598,721 264,486 560,749 1,423,956

THESBMIA Derivative financial instruments 603,715 - - 603,715
RNEIEERETE]  Loans with special 100%

THESBERER  guarantee under the SME

R Financing Guarantee Scheme 90,162,235 - - 90,162,235
EFHEAFE Loan portfolio, net 4,538,018 5,816,454 1,100,9867" 11,455,458
BHERE Investment securities;

—UAYEE{LEFA  —FVOCl

Hiv2EKE - 1,244,974 - 1,244,974
—NAFEEEEIA  —FVPL
B 1,253 8,375 - 9,628
— RESHKATIR —amortised cost 2,656,783 8,419,524 2,066,769A\" 13,143,076
INEEETFR Placements with the
Exchange Fund 32,798,933 - - 32,798,933

ReREMERE Deposits and other assets 1,392,415 3,508,322 94 4,900,831
SRBERSR Total financial assets 167,095,902 19,413,181 3,759,107 190,268,190
SRER Financial liabilities
BT FI S Interest payable 923,373 192,944 537,962 1,654,279
JETIRIE - JERIBRST  Accounts payable, accrued

REMEE expenses and other liabilities 12,965,514 24,869 - 12,990,383
TEERMIA Derivative financial instruments 4,192,097 - - 4,192,097
BRETEBES Debt securities issued 90,308,324  12,828,216*  27,938,732* 131,075,272
SRARBEE Total financial liabilities 108,389,308 13,046,029 28,476,694 149,912,031
SR 3 Net position® 38,849,727 6,367,152 (24,717,587) 20,499,292
LEBERINFEE  Off-balance sheet net

A notional position # (27,074,653) 607,714 24,546,891 (1,920,048)
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Amounts included cash and short-term funds in Australian
dollars of HK$30 million and renminbi of HK$1 million.

Amounts included loan portfolio, net in Australian dollars of
HK$1.1 billion.

Amounts included investment securities at amortised cost in
renminbi of HK$2.1 billion.

Fully hedged into Hong Kong dollars.

Amounts included debt securities issued in Australian dollars of
HK$1.2 billion and renminbi of HK$26.8 billion, fully hedged into
Hong Kong dollars.

“Net position” represents the difference between total assets
and total liabilities.

"Off-balance sheet net notional position” represents the
difference between the notional amounts of foreign currency
derivative financial instruments, which are principally used to
reduce the Group’s exposure to currency movements and their
fair values.



57
HK$'000

e

a7
HK$'000

Hiohg k]
Other foreign

currencies Total
T TR
HK$'000 HK$'000

WZZE-—F+-H  Asat31December 2021
=+—~H
THEE Financial assets
ReLhEHEe Cash and short-term funds 43,523,586 1,342,495 383,301 45,249,382
FEMFI S R B Interest and remittance
receivables 325,259 116,314 429,699 871,272
TESmIA Derivative financial instruments 812,397 - - 812,397
/B EERETEIT  Loans with special 100%
HBESBERER guarantee under the SME
EX Financing Guarantee Scheme 71,063,154 - - 71,063,154
ERHEAFE Loan portfolio, net 4,151,593 3,333,262 1,085,958AA 8,570,813
BHEE Investment securities:
— URFER —FvOocCl
AEMEEKE 601,563 3,045,619 - 3,647,182
—UATEEEA  —FWPRL
Ba 1,354 9,356 - 10,710
— TR S R AN 15 — amortised cost 297,536 8,292,847 2,616,600MA 11,206,992
INEES TR Placements with the
Exchange Fund 28,633,258 - - 28,633,258
BEREMEE Deposits and other assets 1,863,384 140,549 253,888 2,257,821
SRBEADR Total financial assets 151,273,084 16,280,442 4,769,455 172,322,981
SRBE Financial liabilities
FERHE, Interest payable 258,339 41,012 388,891 688,242
JERTIRTE  fEftBRsz  Accounts payable, accrued
REMAE expenses and other liabilities 20,470,333 913,724 94 21,384,151
TESRBTA Derivative financial instruments 334,529 - - 334,529
BETEKES Debt securities issued 73,064,515 16,327,369* 26,261,083** 115,652,967
SRBEASE Total financial liabilities 94,127,716 17,282,105 26,650,068 138,059,889
BEFE" Net position® 41,080,071 (1,001,663) (21,880,613) 18,197,795
BEBERINELE  Off-balance sheet net
BaH notional position # (34,756,067) 10,340,223 24,712,746 296,902
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A Amounts included cash and short-term funds in Australian
dollars of HK$0.3 billion and renminbi of HK$0.1 billion.

AN Amounts included loan portfolio, net in Australian dollars of
HK$1.1 billion.

AAN - Amounts included investment securities at amortised cost in
renminbi of HK$2.6 billion.

* Fully hedged into Hong Kong dollars.

i Amounts included debt securities issued in Australian dollars of
HK$1.4 billion and renminbi of HK$24.9 billion, fully hedged into
Hong Kong dollars.

@ “Net position” represents the difference between total assets
and total liabilities.

b "Off-balance sheet net notional position” represents the
difference between the notional amounts of foreign currency
derivative financial instruments, which are principally used to
reduce the Group’s exposure to currency movements and their
fair values.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value
interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group takes on exposure to the
effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market
interest rates on both its fair value and cash flow risks.
Interest margins may increase as a result of such
changes but may reduce or create losses in the event
that unexpected movements arise. The ALCO sets
limits on the level of interest rate mismatch that may
be undertaken, which is monitored regularly.

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to
interest rate risks. Included in the tables are the assets
and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the
earlier of contractual repricing or maturity dates. The
carrying amounts of derivative financial instruments,
which are principally used to reduce the Group’s
exposure to interest rate movements, are included
under the heading “Non-interest bearing”.
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-EANE  ZEANE  -ENE
-fifm  2=fiA E-F FRE  EFUNE T8
Over Over Over Nor-

Upto 1monthto 3monthsto  1yearto Over interest
fmonth  3months 1 year 5 years 5 years bearing Total
Thr TER T TET T TET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RZBZZE+ZR=1-A As at 31 December 2022

SHEE Financial assets
ReREHEe Cash and short-term funds 10,226,296 22,973,825 - - - 1325263 34,525,384
I8 RER Interest and remittance
receivables - - = - = 1,423,956 1,423,956
fTEERIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 603,715 603,715
PO RERRAETH Loans with special 100%
BABERKEER guarantee under the SME
Financing Guarantee Scheme 90,162,235 - - - - - 90,162,235
EREATE Loan portfolio, net 6,221,566 3,572,027 433,558 987 1,177,320 - 11,455,458
BHRE: Investment securities:
—NATEE AL ZEYE  —FVOCl - 289,036 - 692,968 262,970 - 1244974
—WATEE A ABR —FVPL - - - - - 9,628 9,628
— & AT IR — amortised cost 78,024 - 2,509,914 6,362,601 4,192,537 - 13,143,076
MNEESTER Placements with the
Exchange Fund - - - - - 32798933 32,798,933
mERANEE Deposits and other assets 3,506,764 - - - - 1,394,067 4,900,831
SREELE Total financial assets 10,194,885 26,834,888 2993472  7,05,556 5632827 37,555,562 190,268,190
SHER Financial liabilities
ERFE Interest payable - - - - - 1654279 1,654,279
EIRE - ERFZR Accounts payable, accrued
EiRfk expenses and other liabiies 6,657,018 - - - - 6333365 12990383
SRR Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 4192097 4,192,097
BEAEEES DeDt Securities issued 3949661  29,338870 38,441,884 55,297,504 4,047,353 - 131,075,272
SRAESE Total financial liabilities 10,606,679 29,338,870 38,441,884 55,297,504 4,047,353 12179741 149,912,031
flegRERNEE Total interest sensitivity gap* 99,588,206  (2,503,982) (35,448,412) (48,240,948) 1,585,474

MEGTETE (BASEMEEAE)  Interest rate derivatives (notional
amounts of net position) (9,837,903)  (19,068,578) 7,109,221 20,074,847 (197,635)

* R APTE ST AHB BT & before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments
BREFEELHNTE - on the debt securities issued.
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—fHARE —ElE
—fEARA E=fiA ERE RENE Fite
Over Over Over Non-
Upto  Tmonthto  3monthsto Tyearto Over interest
1 month 3months 1year 5Yyears 5years bearing
T Thr T 0 T Thr I
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-E--F+-f=1-H As &t 31 December 2021
SHAE Financial assets
ReREHES Cash and short-term funds 14,576,175 25,701,822 3,498,491 = = 1,472,294 45,249,382
FElAS RER Interest and remittance
receivables - - - - - 871,272 871212
fTEERIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 812,397 812,397
PO RERRETH Loans with special 100%
BABERKEEEN guarantee under the SME
Financing Guarantee Scheme 71,063,154 - - - - - 71063154
et Loan portfolio, net 5455979 171112% 920890 3050 479,768 - 8570813
FHRE: Investment securities:
—NATEE G ARMZEYE  —FVOCl = 1844470 1,239,160 247 468 316,084 = 3,647,182
—WATEE A BR —FVPL = = = = = 10,710 10,710
— R AT iR — amortised cost 183,840 21,676 2,131,245 3492525 5,171,706 = 11,206992
HNEERHEH Placements with the
Exchange Fund - - - - - 863298 2863328
BERANEE Deposits and other assets 132,381 - - - - 2,125,040 225780
SHEELS Total financial assets 941219 WA 779578 3743043 5967558 3395371 172322981
SHAE Financial liahilities
EffE Interest payable - - - - - 688,42 088,212
EfRE - ERFZR Accounts payable, accrued
EaE expenses and other iabilites 13,576,373 - - - - 7807778 21,384,151
THSRTA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 334,59 334,529
BRIBEES Debt securities issued 5,282,958 20,566,178 41,497,253 43,505,450 4,801,128 - 115,652,967
SRAELE Total financial liabilities 18,859,331 0566178 41497283 43505450 4801128 8830549 138,059,889
FEGREHRD AT Total interest sensitivity gap* 72,552,798 8912916 (33701467)  (39.762.407) 1,166,430
FEGTETE(BAFENEESE)  Interest rate derivatives (notional
amounts of net position) (4503479)  (22.291914) 19,317,832 7622524 157939
* RETAPTE SR T AHBRT & before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments

BREFEELSHTE - on the debt securities issued.
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3.4. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk of the Group not being
able to repay its payment obligations or to fund committed
purchases of loans. Liquidity risk is managed by monitoring
the actual inflows and outflows of funds on a daily basis and
projecting longer-term inflows and outflows of funds across a
full maturity spectrum. The Group has established diversified
funding sources to support the growth of its business and
the maintenance of a balanced portfolio of liabilities. Sources
of liquidity are regularly reviewed by ALCO.

(@ Undiscounted cash flows analysis

The tables below present cash flows payable by
the Group under non-derivative financial liabilities,
derivative financial liabilities that will be settled on a
net basis and derivative financial instruments that will
be settled on gross basis by remaining contractual
maturities as at the end of the reporting period. The
amounts disclosed in the tables are the projected
contractual undiscounted cash flows including future
interest payments on the basis of their earliest possible
contractual maturity. The Group’s derivatives include
interest rate swaps that will be settled on net basis;
Cross currency swaps and currency forwards that will
be settled on gross basis.
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() ETETARESREASORH) ()  Non-derivative cash inflows/(outflows)

D) ZEARL —EpE
= 2-F gt
AR Over Over RENE

Upto  1monthto 3 months to 1yearto Over ]
1month 3 months 1year 5 years 5 years Total
T TiEn T T TiEn T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

WZZ-Z#+-F=1-H Asat31December 2022

af Liabilities
EfIRE - BAEIR Accounts payable,

ABE accrued expenses and

other liabilities

—HERR — lease liabilities (3,297) (6,593) (27,370) (76,033) - (113,293)
BETERES Debt securities issued

—R&5H — principal portion (2,368,820) (21,026,137) (41,325,431) (63,013,011)  (4,545,464) (132,278,863)

—Ha%s — inferest portion (93178)  (804,405)  (2420989)  (2746,964)  (1,466490)  (7,532,026)

(2,465,295) (21,837,135)  (43,773,790)  (65,836,008)  (6,011,954) (139,924,182)

=EANE —EpLE
' ZhE
—fiAR Over Over RENE

Upto Tmonthto 3 months to 1yearto QOver

1 month 3months 5years 5years
i# Tiér T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R=E-—F+-F=F—H Asat31December 2021

af Liabilities
EMIRE - BRI R Accounts payable,

EftgfE accrued expenses

and other liabilities

—HEak — lease liabilities (3.324) (6,648) (29,685) (107,436) (5,800) (152,893)
BETERES Debt securities issued

—RE5H — principal portion (3525144)  (11933549)  (45,728239)  (47.721,173) (4.913,791)  (113,821,89)

—HEHr — Interest portion (35,529) (431,567) (845,452) (1,395,004) (1,588,399) 4,295,951)

(3563997)  (12371764)  (46,603376)  (49,223613) (6,507,990)  (118,270,740)
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PTHETARESRACRE) (i) Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)

—fA%LE  Z@EANE —ERE
Z=fiA B-F ZRE
AR Over Over Over RENE

Upto 1monthto 3 monthsto 1year to Over o
1 month 3 months 1 year 5 years 5 years Total
TiEn Ti#gn TiEn TiEn Ti#gn TiEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

WZZE--#+-B=+-H Asat31December 2022

R MEELEE Derivative financial
ITESRTA: instrument settled:
—FEEE — on et basis (135,568) (438,780) (819,450) (498,089) (77,569)  (1,969,456)
—famEE — 0N gr0ss basis
g Total outflow (5718,990)  (7,909,536) (13,304,323) (32,844,297)  (2,875,356) (62,652,502)
MABE Total inflow 5,615,044 7,686,021 12,465,107 31,787,438 2,897,762 60,451,372

(239,514) (662,295)  (1,658,666)  (1,554,948) (55,163)  (4,170,586)

—Ep L
BRE
Over Over RENE

Tmonthto  3monthsto 1year to QOver
1 month 3months 5years 5years Total
Tibr T B AL TAL AL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RZZB-—%F+-A=F—H Asat31December 2021

R MEELEE Derivative financial
fTESRIA: instrument settled:
—FEEE — On net basis (8,39) (1,177 33,562 (147.17) 107 (123575)
—amEE — 0N gr0ss basis
it Total outflow (2,772,743) 8477853)  (22542.231)  (16,446,495) (917,603 (61,156,930)
TMALE Total inflow 2,794,769 8,863,581 23,183,567 16,609,332 891,768 52,343,517

13,125 384,551 674,898 16,166 (25728) 1,063,012
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TRREZHPREAHIH
BRIGEE - 2WBRAEER

B B2 -

EUEE

Repayable

Maturity analysis

The table below analyses the assets and liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the end of the reporting period to the
contractual maturity date.

-fANE ZEAME  -FME

2=fiA E-F ZRE

-8Rk Over Over Over
Upto 1monthto 3monthsto

BERE

1year to Over ERE &%

ondemand  1month 3 months 1 year 5 years 5years  Undated Total
TEn TEn TR TR TER TER TER TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
WZB-—#+-f=+-H  Asat31December 2022
&E Assets
ReREHEe(28) Cash and short-term funds (gross) 2,315,390 9,236,926 22,976,172 - - - - 34,528,488
P REERGEITH Loans with special 100% guarantee
BABEREREN under the SME Financing
Guarantee Scheme 33494 1,340,169 2,382,379 10,296,369 47,021,943 29,087,881 - 90,162,235
B34 Loan portfolio 597 70,347 288,843 637,895 4,241,451 5,573,697 657,302 11,470,132
FHRE Investment securities
—AATEZ (LA —Rvoc
o 2ENE = = = 195,408 786,595 262,971 - 1244974
—NATEE(GARS —FPL - - - - - - 9,628 9,628
— R EHATE (E8) —amortised cost (gross) = 78,026 - 2410497 6,465,003 4,194,132 - 13,147,658
NEESTER Placements with the Exchange Fund - - - 3,391,087 12,077,249 17,330,597 - 32,798,933
BRBEE Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 734,052 734,052
2,349,481 10,725,468 25,647,394 16,931,256 70,592,241 56,449,278 1,400,982 184,096,100
8% Liahilities
RR&E Insurance liabilities - 87171 165,064 729,844 3,396,268 9,959,686 6,535,981 20,874,014
BREIERES Debt securities issued - 3,349,792 20,995,098 40,741,617 61741527 4,247,238 - 131,075,272
- 3436963 21,160,162 41,471,461 65,137,795 14,206,924 6,535,981 151,949,286

llszh
Repayable 1 month to 1yearto ]
on demand 3months 5years Undated
oy BT AT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZEB-—£+-B=1—H  Asat31December 2021
BE Assets
ReREHEe(28) Cash and short-term funds (gross) 2884469 13165337 25705463 3499,000 - - - 45054269
HREERG Loans with Special 100% guarantee
BABEREREN under the SME Financing
Guarantee Scheme 11781 904,589 1828156 10,844,682 42370361 15,103,585 - 71,063,154
BF4EA Loan portfolio 610 39230 114,623 553387 3663289 3928599 276,551 8,576,089
EHRE Investment securities
—ARFER(LAA —Fvoc
E2EkaE = = 819,067 1,582,651 929,380 316,084 - 3,647,182
—NATEE(GARE —FVPL - - - - - - 10,710 10,710
— FRB A ARG (1258) — amortised cost (gross) = = 62,361 1,831,157 4,143,659 5,173,707 - 11210884
HEESTER Placements with the Exchange Fund - - — 0665272 8973975 14,9940 - 28633258
BREEE Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 491,049 491,049
2896860 14109156 28529670 22976149 60,080,664 39,515,986 778310 168,886,795
A Liabilities
RR&E Insurance liabilities - 69,308 126,265 558196 2665163 8163521 5201837 16,784,290
BETERES Debt securities issued = 5282958 11958822 45747073 47,663,067 5,001,047 - 115652967
- 5392266 12085087 46305269 50328230 13164568 5201837  132437,257
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3.5.

Apart from the above, interest and remittance
receivables, prepayments and other assets, interest
payable, accounts payable, accrued expenses and
current tax liabilities are expected to be recovered or
settled within twelve months from the reporting date.
Other assets and liabilities included in the consolidated
statement of financial position are expected to be
recovered or settled in a period more than twelve
months after the reporting date.

In addition, the Exchange Fund has committed to
providing the Group with a HK$80 billion revolving
credit under the Revolving Credit Facility since 2020,
which enables the Group to maintain smooth operation
under exceptional circumstances, so that it can better
fulfil its mandate to promote banking and financial
stability in Hong Kong.

Insurance risk

Through its general insurance subsidiary, the Group provides
the mortgage insurance cover to participating lenders for
first credit losses, in general, of up to 40% of the property
value of a residential mortgage loan in Hong Kong with
loan-to-value ratio 90% or below at origination, or other
thresholds as specified from time to time. The Group also
provides financial guarantee cover to participating Als up to
50%-70% of the banking facilities granted to SMES in Hong
Kong and insurance cover in respect of reverse mortgage
loans originated by participating lenders and secured
on residential properties, life insurance policies and, if
applicable, other assets.

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility
that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the
amount of the resulting claim. By the very nature of an
insurance contract, this risk is random; however it can be
predicted with a certain disclosed level of reliability.

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of
probability is applied to pricing and provisioning, the principal
risk that the Group faces under its insurance contracts is
that the actual claims exceed the carrying amount of the
insurance liabilities. This could occur because the frequency
or severity of claims are greater than estimated. Insurance
events are random and the actual number and amount of
claims and benefits will vary from year to year from the
estimate established using statistical techniques.
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Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar
insurance contracts, the smaller the relative variability
about the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more
diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected across the
board by a change in any subset of the portfolio. The Group
has developed a business strategy to diversify the type
of insurance risks accepted and within each of the key
categories to achieve a sufficiently large population of risks
to reduce the variability of the expected outcome.

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by
several factors. The most significant are a downturn of the
economy, a slump in the local property market and a low
mortality rate of borrowers. Economic downturn, which may
cause a rise in defaulted payment, affects the frequency of
claims and collateral value. A drop in property prices, where
the collateral value falls below the outstanding balance
of the mortgage loan, will increase the severity of claims.
Low mortality rate of reverse mortgage borrowers means
longer payout period and larger loan balance will be over
time. This will affect the frequency and severity of claims as
there is a risk of the property value insufficient to cover the
outstanding loan balance in the future.

The Group manages these risks by adopting a set of prudent
insurance underwriting eligibility criteria. To ensure sufficient
provision is set aside for meeting future claim payments,
the Group calculates technical reserves on prudent liability
valuation assumptions and the method prescribed in the
regulatory guidelines. The Group also takes out quota-share
reinsurance from its approved mortgage reinsurers in an
effort to limit its risk exposure under the mortgage insurance
business and reverse mortgage business. The Group
conducts comprehensive assessment including the financial
strength and credit ratings of the reinsurers in accordance
with the approved selection framework. The approved
mortgage reinsurers are subject to periodic reviews. For
financial guarantee cover provided to participating lenders
via its general insurance subsidiary, the Group relies on the
lenders’ prudent credit assessment on the borrowers to
mitigate default risk and any loss in the loan facility will be
shared proportionately between the Group and the lender on
a pari passu basis to minimise moral hazards. The mortality
assumptions of reverse mortgages are also reviewed on a
regular basis, to assess the risk of larger deviation between
the actual and expected operating results.

216 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2022



REEFEBEASRBHE A RRIE
ABPREFEER ° RREBRIRR
HERRE REEMELE RN
EREL - TENRBERRARSE
B W DEFERBANERSGE
BIRHAS MR MESL - AEE
BREA—RINBRRR I ERE
TRBMENEERREAR - FEE
mEBMEER GHKRREHNE
EXRY THENFSEE RER
EFRAREERAE L HNEEHE
Ao o RBEILERR - AEBEERE
BRB - UBO#BHEERENE
i) o

—RRRI B R R R ASRBHEL
AYAXRREEEREE  WAS
SRR EEE R ANERARE

RZZEZ—_F+=ZA=+—H 11—
AR ETS M AR A L R IE 1 1% » Bl
FERBEFERAD1,008BT(ZF
Z—F : 7008ET) c AERELEET
B 1% + BIJEE Am A1 388 00 1,000 & 74
T(ZE-—% :7008%T) - 46
LR ThIRE EA BB RFAZMAER
LA ERR B FRERT E ©

TEERABRREGHRRE EY
FE - 5 T s (B 56 ) E L ) U
JE o

Through its life insurance subsidiary, the Group offers
annuity product to personal customers. Insurance
risk arises from an inaccurate assessment of the risks
entailed in writing and pricing an insurance policy.
The major insurance risk is the longevity risk which
arises from the possibility that actual life expectancy of
annuitants being longer than expected. Insurance risk
is managed by adopting a prudent set of assumptions
and conducting regular experience studies. Asset-
liability mismatch risk inherent to the annuity product is
due to asset volatility, uncertain annuity liabilities, cash
flow mismatch and currency mismatch between assets
and liabilities. To mitigate such risk, the Group actively
monitor the performance and steadfastly maintains
control over asset allocation.

The general insurance subsidiary and life insurance
subsidiary are subject to the supervision of the
Insurance Authority and are required to observe the
relevant compliance requirements stipulated by the
Insurance Authority.

As at 31 December 2022, if the combined ratio of
general insurance business had increased by 1%, profit
for the year would have been HK$10 million (2021:
HK$7 million) lower. If combined ratio had decreased
by 1%, profit for the year would have been HK$10
million (2021: HK$7 million) higher. Combined ratio
is calculated by taking the sum of incurred losses
and expenses and then dividing them by net earned
premium.

The following table shows the sensitivity of insurance

liabilities on the life insurance business to potential
changes in mortality and valuation interest rate.
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R=®==F+=g=+-A
As at 31 December 2022

FlAmp:S
+ 10%
- 10%
HER =
+0.5%
-0.5%

Mortality

+ 10%

-10%

Valuation interest rate
+0.5%

-0.5%

REREE
BT
Amount
change from
insurance
liabilities

THET
HK$'000
B/ ORs)
Increase/
(decrease)

(220,431)
244,773

(651,231)
710,197

REBEE
B EE
Percentage
change from
insurance
liabilities

%

B/ ORd)
Increase/
(decrease)

(1.5)
17

(4.5)
5.0

R—ZE-_—F+=—_A=+—H
As at 31 December 2021

ST %
+ 10%
- 10%
HEF =
+0.5%
—-0.5%

Mortality

+ 10%

-10%

Valuation interest rate
+0.5%

-0.5%

RE2EE
SR E
Amount
change from
insurance
liabilities
T
HK$'000
#hn/ CRd)
Increase/
(decrease)

(173,123)
192,379

(525,658)
573,362

RiEBE
AL EE
Percentage
change from
insurance
liabilities

%

g/ Cd)
Increase/
(decrease)
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3.6. Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

3.6. ERIEEREBENATEE
(@ AFEME (@) Fair value estimation

TRINTEAFEREGE
TEGE) ERNERTA -

The following table shows financial instruments
recognised at fair value, by valuation method.

RZ8-Z#+=A=t+-A —£+ZA=1+-H
As at 31 December 2022 As at 31 December 2021
5-F =R %ZR 8 F-F FE H=F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level1 Level2 Level3
TiEn T TEx T THL THL THL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BE Assets
fTAESRIA Derivative financial instruments - 603,715 - 603,715 - 812,397 - 812,397
FHRE Investment securities
—NATEREGA  —FOCl
Ep2Eks 1,204,974 - - 1,244,974 2358572 1,288,610 = 3,647,182
—UAFERGA R
B 9,628 = = 9,628 10,710 = = 10710
NEELER Placements with the Exchange Fund - - 32798933 32,798,933 - - BB 28633258
1,254,602 603,715 32,798,933 34,657,250 2,369,282 2101007 28633258 33103547
g Liabilities
fTAESRIA Derivative financial instruments - 4,192,097 - 4,192,097 - 334,529 - 334,529
- 4,192,097 - 4,192,097 - 334,529 - 334529

RAFE  F—EBHE_EN There was no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 nor
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EHARBL B -
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SEMARBAFEE
ERMEREDHHR
7 MRBAFEFE
MEEXBES —@E
ABMEHE £EMRE
EEZEHEANNKEE
KERAFENER  E
ZRARFAEATE T
ERTANKBREES
70

transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.

Financial instruments in Level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the reporting date. A market is regarded as
active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on
an arm’s length basis. If an asset or a liability
measured at fair value has a bid price and an
ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread
that is most representative of fair value in the
circumstances shall be used to measure fair
value. These instruments are included in Level 1.
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Financial instruments in Level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data
where it is available and rely as little as possible
on entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

Level 2 derivatives comprise interest rate swaps,
currency swaps and currency forwards. These
derivatives are fair valued using forward interest
rates and forward exchange rates, if applicable,
from observable yield curves.

Level 2 debt securities are fair valued using
quoted market prices in less active markets, or if
not available, a discounted cash flow approach,
which discounts the contractual cash flows using
discount rates derived from observable market
prices of other quoted debt instruments of the
counterparties.



(iii)
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(iii)

Financial instruments in Level 3

If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument
isincluded in Level 3. The placements with the
Exchange Fund are included in Level 3 with fair
value determined by reference to the principal
amount and the estimated rates of investment

return.

Movement in Level 3 fair value measurement as

follows:

Kn—H—H As at 1 January 28,633,258 16,336,835
INEE S TF TR * Placements with the
Exchange Fund* 4,907,000 11,640,000
SNEE SR Withdrawals from the
Exchange Fund* (1,500,000) (1,500,000)
R8s HERH Income from placements with
SNE B 17 R A the Exchange Fund recognised
(FFE9) in profit or loss (Note 9) 532,861 1,991,151
REME ERERA Income from placements with
SNGE B B A7 R e * the Exchange Fund recognised
in other liabilities* 225,814 165,272
W+=—H=+—H” As at 31 December 32,798,933 28,633,258

EHREBEERAT —S-—FF% 221



SmEBEHRERMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

* Slte i S GRIES S
| Bt 4 ER 2R B BT A
EBEASBERE
ABBEERGTETH
BRHOEMREBEBREK
RBEROEBT &
R ERIM30EBTH
BKEBEERAREEE
FEEITHER - K=
T —FF+-RA=1+—
B - RINEESTFIRA
TE A RIB 4 SR E R
B ARMEBT (=
T = - FEEB
TL) o E—HFEFES
BRI FE29 o

VAR FEFENEHMEE
MEBENATE

R —F+=-A=+—H
rF—EZ—F+-_A=+—
B AEEWARRM AR E
BRATERHRZ/ S TAN
IREEEAFEIREERT
A o BrEREEEAFERE
MEBMI AN TRAEURD
FEFENSRTAEZER
B - AFERAFERER
Al :

Since 2021, the Group has placed on behalf of the
Government HK$6 billion with respect to the advance
payment received from the Government for purchasing
loans under 100% Personal Loan Guarantee Scheme
(PLGS), of which HK$3 billion has been withdrawn to
purchase of loans under PLGS for the Government.
As at 31 December 2022, the outstanding balance of
the advance payment placed with the Exchange Fund
together with accrued interest amounted to HK$3.4
billion (2021: HK$4.7 billion). Please refer to Note 29 for
more details.

(b) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities not
measured at fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial
instruments not presented on the Group's statement of
financial position at their fair values are not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 December

2022 and 3

1 December 2021 except for the following

financial instruments, for which their carrying amounts
and fair values and the level of fair value hierarchy are
disclosed below:

R=B=ZF+ZA=t-H
As at 31 December 2022

RZB_—%F+-A=1—H
As at 31 December 2021

iREE il

Carrying AYE £-F $ZEB  Camyjing ATE 5 E =
amount  Fair value Level 1 Level 2 amount  Fairvalue Level1 Level2

AR TR TAR AT AL b TAL TATL
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK§'000  HKS000  HKS'000

SREE Financial assets
BHRE Investment securities
—IRA SR ASIE  —amortised cost 13,143,076 12,602,018 9,730,496 2,871,522 11206992 11777666 9963998 1,813,668
SHEE Financial liabilities
BRTEBES Debt securities issued 131,075,272 130,816,527 - 130,816,527 115,652,967 116,310,363 - 116,310,363
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The following methods and significant assumptions
have been used to estimate the fair values of financial
instruments:

(i)

(if)

(iif)

Cash and short-term funds

Cash and short-term funds include bank deposits
and are stated net of impairment allowance.
The fair value of floating-rate deposits is the
carrying amount. The estimated fair value of
fixed-rate deposits, which are normally less than
six months, is based on discounted cash flows
using prevailing money-market interest rates
for debts with similar credit risk and remaining
maturity. Therefore, the fair value of the deposits
is approximately equal to their carrying value.

Loans with special 100% guarantee under the
SFGS

Loan portfolio is stated net of impairment
allowance. With the 100% guarantee provided
by the Government to cover the default loss of
the loans, no impairment allowance is provided.
Therefore, the carrying value of loan portfolio is a
reasonable estimate of the fair value.

Loan portfolio, net

Loan portfolio is stated net of impairment
allowance. An insignificant portion of loan
portfolio bears interest at fixed rate. Therefore,
the carrying value of loan portfolio is a
reasonable estimate of the fair value.
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Investment securities at amortised cost

Investment securities are stated net of
impairment allowance. Fair value for investment
securities at amortised cost is based on market
prices or broker/dealer price quotations, which
are the clean prices. Where this information is
not available, fair value has been estimated using
quoted market prices for securities with similar
credit, maturity and yield characteristics.

Other assets

These mainly represent receivables from
debt securities issued for settlement after the
reporting date with the fair value approximating
the carrying amount.

Debt securities issued

The aggregate fair values are calculated based on
quoted market prices, which are the clean prices.
For those notes where quoted market prices are
not available, a discounted cash flow model is
used based on a current yield curve appropriate
for the remaining term to maturity.

Other liabilities

These mainly represented the guarantee fee
and fund received (net of claims and related
expenses) under special concessionary
measures of the SFGS (Note 32) and the PLGS,
and the deferred consideration used for credit
enhancement on the mortgage loans purchased
from the Government in December 2003 and
January 2004 with the fair value approximating
the carrying amount.
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(viil) Interest and remittance receivables and interest
payable

Accrued interest is recognised separately with
the fair value approximating the carrying amount
as it is expected to be recovered or settled
within twelve months from the reporting date.
Remittance receivables are expected to be
recovered within one month from the reporting
date with the fair value approximating the
carrying amount.

3.7. Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital, which is a
broader concept than the equity on the face of the statement
of financial position, are:

o to comply with the capital requirements set by the
Financial Secretary of the Government (Financial
Secretary) and the Insurance Authority for its
insurance subsidiaries;

o to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholder;

o to support the Group’s stability and growth;

o to allocate capital in an efficient and risk-based
approach to optimise risk adjusted return to the
shareholder; and

o to maintain a strong capital base to support the
development of its business.

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are
monitored daily by the management in accordance with the
Guidelines on Capital Adequacy Ratio (Guidelines) issued by
the Financial Secretary, by reference largely to Basel Il risk-
based capital adequacy framework. The minimum Capital
Adequacy Ratio (CAR) stipulated in the Guidelines is 8%.
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The Chief Executive Officer is required to submit a report
to the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis by reference
to the Guidelines issued by the Financial Secretary. If the
CAR drops to the threshold level of 14%, the Chief Executive
Officer will alert the Executive Directors. If the CAR falls to
12% or below, the Board of Directors will be informed and
appropriate remedial actions will be taken. During the period,
the Group complied with all of the capital requirement set
out in the Guidelines by the Financial Secretary.

Pursuant to the Guidelines on the CAR, the calculation
basis of capital ratio follows the basis of consolidation for
financial reporting with the exclusion of subsidiaries which
are “regulated financial entities” (e.g. insurance companies).
It is because these entities are supervised by a regulator
and are subject to the maintenance of adequate capital (e.g.
solvency ratio) to support business activities comparable to
those prescribed for banks. The investment cost of these
unconsolidated regulated financial entities is deducted from
the capital base whilst the corresponding related exposures
are also excluded from the calculation of risk-weighted
assets.

The table below summarises the composition of capital base

RERFRE o and the CAR as at the end of the reporting period.

2021

FHIT

HK$'000

A&z Share capital 12,000,000 9,500,000
B Reserves 8,956,617 9,057,471
BB E Impairment allowance 21,601 13,772

HIBR - Deductions:
—RIXEERB AR — Investment in regulated

®E subsidiaries (13,000,000) (10,500,000)
BARE A% Total capital base 7,978,218 8,071,243
BART R E Capital Adequacy Ratio 27.9% 23.4%
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38. ERIEERSMBHBEZHE 3.8. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

TREED REREBRERE TR The disclosures set out in the tables below pertain to
ARPIAZBEHHENEHEENSF financial assets and financial liabilities that are not offset in

BfE BEZRSEEMBEX ARG FE the Group's consolidated statement of financial position but
,\DZ*?JHZ@ = e R T AMEE are subject to enforceable master netting arrangements or
WEEATAIR - R A ¥ R TFRE similar agreements that cover similar financial instruments.
BT B RIBORIEIAREE B R The disclosures enable the understanding of both the gross
Bt hn & Ht o and net amounts, as well as provide additional information

on how such credit risk is mitigated.

REB-H+-A=1-A

As at 31 December 2022
HBELAEREHBRRR
FAEE HEneE
KRR Related amount 4 Related amount
REE not set off in IREE not set off in
Carrying  the consolidated statement Carrying the consolidated statement
amounts of financial position* amounts of financial position*
onthe ————— onthe
consolidated fi£&MIA consolidated
statementof  Derivative = B&EAR FE*  statement of Derlvat\ve ReFAR
financial financial Cash Net financial financial Cash Net
position  instruments collateral amount* position instruments collateral amount
T Thx T THEL T 7T T TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SREE Financial assets
TESBIAZ Positive fair values for
FEATE derivative financial
instruments 603,715 (603,715) = = 812,397 (196,767) (582,030) 33,600
SRER Financial liabilities
fTEeRIEL Negative fair values for
BYATE derivative financial
instruments 4,192,097 (603,715)  (3,416,172) 172,210 334,529 (196,767) (131,364) 6,398

2 [HERME W R AR S B ISR St 2R Y 86 # Amounts under “Related amount not set off in the consolidated
MeHE | B FRLEE LT HKNBOH statement of financial position” represent the amounts of financial
HEEEEIRERARNEHE liabilities/assets position that are subject to netting arrangements or
& BESE- similar agreements including CSA.

* FEEXFREAE R SR L Net amount represents financial assets/liabilities that are subject
HWRMESHEE AE - BREAE to netting arrangements or similar agreements but the Group’s
ENRSHEFELN  EWRAHREN counterparty does not have equivalent financial liabilities/assets
CRVEEAEREAREEELE o position with the Group to offset upon defaullt.
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4.2.
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Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

4.1.

4.2.

Impairment allowances on loan portfolio

The Group reviews its loan portfolio to assess ECLS on
a regular basis. In determining ECLS, the Group makes
judgements as to whether there is any significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition and where appropriate,
default and impairment indicators. It is required to exercise
judgements in making assumptions and estimates to
incorporate relevant information about past events, current
conditions and forecast of economic conditions. The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating both
the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates
and actual loss experience.

The carrying amount of loan portfolio as at 31 December
2022 is disclosed in Note 18.

Fair value of financial instruments

The majority of valuation techniques employ only observable
market data. However, the placements with the Exchange
Fund are valued on the basis of valuation techniques which
are determined by reference to the estimated rates of
investment return, approximate the carrying value. Details of
the fair value measurement of financial instruments are set
out in Note 3.6.
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4.3.

4.4,

Provision for outstanding claims on insurance and
guarantee portfolios of general insurance business

The Group reviews its insurance and guarantee portfolios
to assess provision for outstanding claims, including claims
of which the amounts have not been determined and
claims arising out of incidents that have not been notified
to the insurer, known as “Incurred But Not Reported” and
related expenses for settling such claims. In determining
the provision for outstanding claims, the Group makes
judgement and assumptions including but not limited to
the loss severity rate applied, the economic climate and
the local property market in making estimation of the
payments which the Group is required to make in fulfilling
its obligations under the insurance and guarantee contracts.
The methodology and assumptions used for estimating the
ultimate claim amount are reviewed regularly.

The carrying amount of insurance liabilities as at 31
December 2022 is disclosed in Note 26.

Insurance contract liabilities of life insurance
business

The liability for insurance contracts is based on current
assumptions with a margin for risk and adverse deviation.
The main assumptions used relate to mortality, longevity,
expenses and discount rates, which are reviewed regularly.

The carrying amount of insurance liabilities as at 31
December 2022 is disclosed in Note 26.
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4.5. 100% guarantee under the SME Financing Guarantee

Scheme (100% SFGS)

As refer to Note 17, under 100% SFGS, eligible loans
originated by the participating lenders are sold to the Group,
and the Government provides a financial guarantee to the
Group on these loans. The loans are classified as financial
assets measured at amortised cost under HKFRS 9.

In formulating the accounting treatment of 100% SFGS,
the Group applied judgement on whether the loans
purchased from the participating lenders as recognised on
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position
should be de-recognised as a result of the arrangement
with the Government; whether the contracts between the
participating banks and the Group and the contract between
the Government and the Group should be considered
together in the determination of accounting treatments; and
whether the contractual cash flow of the loans represent
“solely payments of the principal and interest” (SPPI).

When performing this assessment, the Group considers
several factors including, whether the Group has transferred
the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the loans,
whether the contracts between the Government and Group
are considered together and whether the contractual cash
flows met the SPPI criteria etc.
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Segment information

The Group is principally engaged in asset purchase and servicing,
general insurance and life insurance businesses in Hong Kong.
Other activities such as debt issuance to fund the loan purchase
and investment to reinvest the surplus funds from loan receipt are
considered ancillary to asset purchase business.

—REREZBREZBRER  ZERIER
TNERERRER - ASRREESFS
X% - BEEEMMAEERBEEER
WRERTE R EFEITFHMER -

General insurance includes mainly mortgage insurance, reverse
mortgage and SME financing guarantee businesses. Life insurance
includes annuity business. Asset purchase and servicing include
loan acquisition business and other activities such as debt
issuance.

NRIVRAEBEE D ARV WA A B
HipE# -

The following tables represent revenue, profit and other
information for operating segments of the Group.

BREER
HRERRB
Asset

AEEHE

Inter-
segment s
elimination Total
TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000

—fRRR ABRR
General Life
insurance insurance
TEL TEL
HK$'000 HK$'000

purchase
and servicing
THET
HK$'000

HZ-Z--E+-A=1-—RBL%E Yearended 31 December 2022

FHSHA Net interest income 255,501 121,488 (21,098) - 355,891
BRI EREE Net insurance business results - 395,848 (1,017,420) - (621,572)
HiplA Other income 58,071 192,236 348,486 (185,817) 412,976
- ON Operating income 313,572 709,572 (690,032) (185,817) 147,295
S Operating expenses (425,490) (114,239) (161,553) 185,817 (515,465)
Rt ERINEE R Operating loss before impairment (111,918) 595,333 (851,585) - (368,170)
AERE Charge of impairment allowances (6,124) 54 24 - (6,046)
BE AR/ (B8) Profit/(loss) before taxation (118,042) 595,387 (851,561) - (374,216)

EHREVEERAT —S-—FF% 231



SmEBEHRERMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

purchase
and servicing
TATL
HK$'000

HE-T-—F+-A=1—HILERE Yearended 31 December 2021

General
insurance
TR
HK$'000

s
Inter-

Life segment
insurance glimination
T FiET
HK$'000 HK$'000

Total
BT

HK$'000

FHBHA Net interest income 428,059 33,061 (6.232) = 454,888
FREEREE Net insurance business results - (158,829) (1,048,115) - (1,206,944)
HiplA Other income 383,606 151,041 1,843,668 (232,109) 2,146,210
BERA Operating income 811,665 25273 789,321 (232,105) 1,394,154
"ETH Operating expenses (377.7119) (176,65) (169,626) 232,105 (491,89)
Rt ERINEE BT Operating profit before impairment 433946 (151,383) 619,695 - 902,258
REEE Charge impairment allowances (7533 (571) 81 - (8,185)
BEAnER/ (B18) Profit/(loss) before taxation 426,413 (151,954) 619,614 - 894,073
BEEER

HRERRE A EEH

Asset —RiRR Inter-
purchase General segment b
and servicing insurance insurance  elimination Total
TR TR TR TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BR=BZZE+-A=1-H As at 31 December 2022

PBEE Segment assets 153,397,516 14,918,705 26,396,652 (3,347,713) 191,365,160
NEBE Segment liabilities 145,301,387 11,454,882 17,457,312 (3,347,713) 170,865,868

purchase
and servicing
THAL
HK$'000

General
insurance
THT
HK$'000

Life Segment
insurance glimination
THT THT
HK$'000 HK$'000

it
Total
THT
HK$'000

RZB=—F+-A=1+—H As at 31 December 2021
PEHEE Segment assets 138,942,104 15,699,117 21,070,791 (2533778) 173,178,234
NEEE Segment liabilities 130,872,298 12,750,605 13,891,314 (2.533,778) 154,980,439
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6. FI2UGAN 6. Interestincome

2022 2021
THET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
Ex4EE Loan portfolio 333,384 131,780
AOBER/NMEEERAEE Loans with 100% SFGS 1,040,900 224,461
BehEHES Cash and short-term funds 812,550 171,344
FHEIRE Investment securities 473,768 378,563
2,660,602 906,148

7. FIEXH 7. Interest expense

RITER R EITERE Bank loans and debt securities issued 2,112,900 435,570
HEaRE Lease liabilities 1,966 2,429
HAh Others 189,845 13,261
2,304,711 451,260
FrEF B KRB IEUARATFEEZLEFA All interest expenses are for financial liabilities that are not at fair
BaMeraE - value through profit or loss.
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8. RMEZEFRIW IR

Revenue account for insurance business

2022
—RRR AERR —{RE
General Life st General Life
insurance insurance Total insurance insurance
TET TR TR TET TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERE Gross premiums written
(B BT 26(a)(0) (Note and Note 26(a)(i)) 2,558,053 2,528,733 5,086,786 3,036,000 3,003,443 6,039,443
BRBIRE (3 26()0) Reinsurance premiums (Note 26(a)() (346,783) - (346,783) (196,845) - (196,845)
A A EYLE ) Net premiums written (Note 26(a)() 2,211,270 2,528,733 4,740,003 2,839,155 3003443 5,842,598
ARARENESTE Movement in unearned premiums, net (1,062,253) - (1,062,253) (2,007,965) - (2,007,965)
O ER B3 (M 26(a)()  Net premiums earned (Note 26(a)(i) 1,149,017 2,528,733 3,677,750 831,190 3,003,443 3,834,633
MZEEETE  BAFIERE  Netclaimsincurred, benefits paid and
REEFABEEE) movement in policyholders' liabilities
(P zE 26(a)i) ReFfizE26(0)))  (Note 26(a)ii) and Note 26(0)(i) (33,053) (3,545,534) (3,578,587) (28,636) (4,050,814) (4,079 ,450)
RERERBRETE Net premiums earned after provisions 1,115,964 (1,016,801) 99,163 802,554 (1,047,371) (244.817)
Bexit Commission expenses (824,590) (305) (824,895) (1,017.721) (379) (1,018,0%)
BETH Levy expenses - (314) (314) = (369) (369)
BREATAENESSE  Reinsurers' share of commission
exXpenses 104,474 - 104,474 56,338 - 56,338
AT HFERAES L Net commission and levy expenses (720,116) (619) (720,735) (961,383) (744) (962,127)
NEAEREES LR Net premiums earned after
ORHREFE commission and levy expenses 395,848 (1,017,420) (621,572) (158,829) (1,048,115) (1,206,944)
P& - Note:

HR—RRBREBMN S  EREIBREEBREE

ZBEFRRE -

For general insurance business, gross premiums were mainly derived from mortgage
insurance cover on mortgage loans and on reverse mortgage loans.

234  The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2022



HauA 9. Other income

2022 2021
FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
R B SN E S 17 5K M e Income from placements with
the Exchange Fund 532,861 1,991,151
PE N ZE%R Exchange difference (334,801) (457)
TR T AR EES))FE Net change in fair value of
financial instruments 211,485 161,496
AT EE (LT AR Net loss on investments at fair value
REBEFE through profit or loss (1,092) (10,238)
oS 4R S AR AR B R Y Net gain on disposal of investments
wE W FEE at amortised cost - 3,235
EmREREWHA Dividend income from listed investments 253 215
TEE AUWA Administrative fee income 6,471 2,170
EAh Others (2,201) (1,362)
412,976 2,146,210
R TAEAFELZHEENUATFIENE Change in fair value of financial instruments represented the
M:EERATFEERNE P TAAT aggregate of (i) HK$4,235 million fair value loss on hedging
BEEEL2BEBT(ZFT=—F : 258 instruments designated as fair value hedge (2021: HK$258
ETT) R EDHRIE B A AW 42.68 B8 T million) and HK$4,268 million fair value gain on the hedged items
(ZEZ—F:263FBT): RINFEER (2021: HK$263 million); and (i) HK$178 million fair value gain on
B A INER R BT EHAE RS A derivatives mainly for hedging foreign currency exposures which
ERNPTETAEAFEWRE1.78EET(ZF are not qualified as hedges for accounting purposes (2021: HK$156
Z—F 1568 T) - REER/RUIATE million) and there was no fair value gain/loss on debt securities
B ABENBEBRITEREF W EES issued designated as at fair value through profit or loss (2021: nil).

AT ERE BE(CE-—F &) -
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10. EEXZH

10. Operating expenses

2022 2021
FE&T F&TT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB Staff costs:
— e RER — Salaries and benefits 361,597 322,812
— BRIREHA — Pension costs
— A EHRE S — defined contribution plans 19,970 18,710
BEEHWe Directors’ fees - -
MEBEFREAREEEBHN Emoluments in respect of directors’
BEMRB M T2 other services in connection with
the management of the affairs of
the Company:
— & ERERIEA — Salaries, allowances and bonus 6,910 6,724
— RRIKRETEIFTE 2 5K — Retirement scheme contributions 678 661
e (H95E23) Depreciation (Note 23) 79,537 90,077
B 48 B SR A% Financial information services 13,815 12,731
B & Consultancy fees 57,579 40,966
MHHENMES ST Marketing and advertising expenses 45,530 36,667
/NS Premises 11,270 9,915
H A AL & 2 H Other operating expenses 46,815 40,128
WEASBR/ N EREEE®RSE]  Recovery of operating expenses
F A% & 37 1 (Bt aE29()) from 100% SFGS (Note 29(a)) (128,236) (87,495)
515,465 491,896
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1. ZERHEN S 11. Auditor’s remuneration

2022 2021
T FH&TT
HK$'000 HK$'000
ZEEN S Auditor’s remuneration:
— EZARTE — Audit services 7,266 4,738
— H M AR — Other services 2,869 1,821
10,135 6,559
12. BIEHEE 12. Charge of impairment allowances
2021
FHETT
HK$'000
BERERE (D) : Charge/(write-back) of loan impairment
allowances:
— e REHRES (M3E3.2(c)) — Cash and short-term funds (Note 3.2(c)) (1,783) 2,641
— BHIEE — Investment securities
— R H R AN D R — amortised cost (Note 3.2(d)(i))
(Pt 5 3.2(d)(i)) 690 470
— U AFEE (T AEAM — FVOCI (Note 3.2(d)(ii))
2 E Y (FEEE3.2(d)i) (363) (737)
— B E (M5E3.2() — Loan portfolio (Note 3.2(b)) 7,502 5,811
6,046 8,185
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13. BilA 13. Taxation
(a) ZEWERAWBIES : (a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement
represents:
2022 2021
FHET FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BBERER Hong Kong profits tax
— B HIRIE — Current tax 12,090 21,747
— BEFEEAE — Adjustment in respect of
prior years (21,290) (21,972)
(9,200) (225)
ERERIE Deferred taxation
—AFE(RE), /T — (Credit)/charge for
current period (45,608) 63,200
(54,808) 62,975
B 7N BA ) 22 AR A (il AT FE GR B v A 4R Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
16.5%( — & — —4F : 16.5%) th B =R (2021: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the
SHB ESE R BRI BHE  EIERITA B period. Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary
BRI 165%(=F = —F : 16.5%) differences under the liability method using a principal
NETEMRAE LI TR =5 o taxation rate of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%).
AEBRGREA (BE) SwFmFiiE The taxation on the Group’s (loss)/profit before taxation
BIEAESHRAENIE RS ENE differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using
BN the taxation rate of Hong Kong as follows:
2021
T
HK$'000
AL Al (E18), A (Loss)/profit before taxation (374,216) 894,073
12165% (ZE=——%F : 16.5%)H) Calculated at a taxation rate of
MEGTHE 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) (61,746) 147,522
G2 Tax effect of:
— AT AU — income not subject to taxation (180,987) (72,977)
— NAIHIF A 2 — expenses not deductible for
taxation purposes 121,501 20,281
— KRR IBREE — tax losses not recognised 58,651 -
— BEFERE — adjustment in respect of
prior years (21,290) (21,972)
— HAh — other 29,063 9,879)
FIAECGRRE), S H Taxation (credit)/charge (54,808) 62,975
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(b) HABRKARADBIEEES : (b) Provision for taxation in the statement of financial
position represents:

2021

TAET
HK$'000

EHATIEEE (GTA THMEE]) Current tax assets (included in

“Other assets”) 6,143 17,767
REEFIIEE E Deferred tax assets 162,155 116,547
168,298 134,314
EHAIEAE Current tax liabilities 98,666 136,260
RZZE-_—_F+-_A=+—HE=F There was no significant unprovided deferred taxation as at
——F+ZA=+—H WEAFE 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021.
RARBEBELERE -
RERIB (EE),/AEREBHERE The major components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities and
DRERNEESHOT : the movements during the year are as follows:
RERE
MERIEHRE  Impairment
Accelerated allowances
tax and BEER kel
depreciation provisions Tax losses Total
TER TER TER TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-—Z-—F—H—H As at 1 January 2021 8,222 (9,857) (178,112 (179,747)
R AR/ (FA) Charged/(credited) to income
statement 1,433 6,517) 68,284 63,200
NZZ-—F+=-A=+—H Asat31December 2021 9,655 (16,374) (109,828) (116,547)
NV EESNEIN Credited to income statement (1,447) (5,084) (39,077) (45,608)
R=ZZB-—%+=-H=+—H Asat31December 2022 8,208 (21,458) (148,905) (162,155)
RIEFIE A EE R PR B SR SRR Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
s A Al B IER N 2R sufficient future taxable profits will be available for
AN B) A A 75 S 18 A AR AR A o realisation. The unused tax losses can be carried forward
indefinitely.
RTZEAA - EEFERNEERIE There is no significant amount of deferred tax assets/
BE/ABEREREE - liabilities to be settled within twelve months.
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14. IRERBHPES 14. Cash and short-term funds
2022 2021
FET TFETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RI7IH S Cash at banks 2,315,390 2,884,469
RITEBTER Time deposits with banks 32,213,098 42,369,800
HeMEHES R Gross cash and short-term funds 34,528,488 45,254,269
He LEHES R RERE Impairment allowance on cash and
(Pfi7E3.2(c)) short-term funds (Note 3.2 (c)) (3,104) (4,887)
34,525,384 45,249,382
BEASTERNEs  BeRERBE4LIEH For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and
BENTEIEEE=E B KA AR o cash equivalents comprise the following balances with original

maturities of three months or less.

2022 2021
THET TFETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RITIR % Cash at banks 2,315,390 2,884,469
RITEBTER Time deposits with banks 27,567,926 10,920,800
HehERRELEE Cash and cash equivalents 29,883,316 13,805,269
15. FEULFI2 R EERR 15. Interest and remittance receivables
2021
FETT
HK$'000
AT &IBREKFE Interest receivables from:

— FEEHHE L — interest rate swap contracts 942,028 583,549
— EBHKRE — investment securities 122,229 103,164
— RITEHTER — time deposits with banks 157,109 19,906

ERAEREIF B Interest receivables and instalments,
K HAfS 3k in transit from loan portfolio 202,590 164,653

1,423,956 871,272
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16. FTHEERTR

(a)

TTETRHER

AEERATITET RS A AEH
e Bl

EREHa O RERRB AL
ERE RS S EINERAGE - B
R A R B S DA — 43R M B4R E
A HBRTRENEE - HHEHE
Kk F R MEASEIR - [RET
BRI ZERZF TS RERA
T ARENEERRARSEFR
REETEEEMBEERRAANNE

A - REERBERENEHRX S
FTRBREERKS  FESZNEHEE

A
oo
ZoS

o

ETRESHRTANZRZSHE A1
A MBI R R TAREMH—(E
LEERE R - HER WA RS B B AR
RenENTRITEZRNAF
B At - WA EERBRANE BIH R
SEHERRAR - BEETSMNXRE
KIRYEARRARE) - FTET AnT8E
HAKEELRHN(BE)HLTH (R
BINTE - TESRTANS L
HETHERE  DRBMKTANEE
BE - ROTETASREERBEZ
RNV HEME - AT TR RIBNE © AT
BRTET AR HERHN T

16. Derivative financial instruments

(a)

Use of derivatives

The Group uses the following derivative instruments to
hedge the Group's financial risks.

Currency forwards are commitment to purchase or sell
foreign currency at a pre-specified exchange rate on a future
date. Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to
exchange one set of cash flows for another. Swaps result in
an exchange of currencies or interest rates or a combination
of all these. No exchange of principal takes place except
for certain currency swaps. The Group’s credit risk
represents the potential cost to replace the swap contracts
if counterparties fail to perform their obligations. This risk
is monitored on an ongoing basis under a prudent treasury
counterparty risk management framework.

The notional amounts of certain types of financial instruments
provide a basis for comparison with instruments recognised
on the consolidated statement of financial position but do
not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows
involved or the current fair value of the instruments and,
therefore, do not indicate the Group's exposure to credit or
price risks. The derivative instruments become favourable
(assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations
in market interest rates or foreign exchange rates relative to
their terms. The aggregate contractual or notional amounts
of derivative financial instruments on hand, the extent to
which instruments are favourable or unfavourable, and thus
the aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets and
liabilities, can fluctuate significantly from time to time. The
fair values of derivative instruments held are set out below.
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&8/
2ReH AYE H5E8 A¥(E
Contract/ Fair values Contract/ Fair values

notional 8E ff notional BE afE
amounts Assets Liabilities amounts Assets Libilities

Fix FET FHT THL TET THL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

() THAFRREH% () Derivatives not qualified as hedges

MTETA for accounting purposes
ke Interest rate swaps 10,976,609 149,003 (290) 12,555,407 40,407 (82
EsH Currency swaps 6,613,295 54,560 (38,119) 4,637,216 - (94.966)
EBREAN Currency forwards 4,681,528 110 (41,823) 364,427 14 (157)
203,673 (80,232) 40,521 (95,205)
(i) ATFEHHTETA (i) Fair value hedge derivatives
Fil&i= Interest rate swaps 68,783,421 29,829  (1,960,517) 48052689 213547 (121,583)
Eia Currency swaps 44,325,232 370213 (2,111,633) 41497986 485,124 (117,741)
400,042 (4,072,150) 698,671 (239,324)
(i) REmERHTETE (i) Cash flow hedge derivatives
Eiia Currency swaps 2,998,250 - (39,715) 3,385,815 73,205 -
- (39,715) 73205 -
BERRTETA Total recognised derivative
g/ (80 assets/(liabilities) 603,715  (4,192,097) 812,397 (334,529)
(b) ¥tidhiEED (b) Hedging activities
WHTE T AER R FEEIRIIF SR Derivatives may qualify as hedges for accounting purposes if
P EFREMmMS P STETAA they are fair value hedges or cash flow hedges.
IRERT S ¥R EE ©
(i) AFEEF (i)  Fair value hedges
AEBWNAFEHAEERIE The Group's fair value hedge principally consists of
ARREREZHTEEESA interest rate and currency swaps that are used to
FEMERBESE TS 28 protect interest rate risk and foreign currency risk
1) = 2R B 0 471N BEE [ e ) ) 2R resulting from any potential change in fair value of
BHkaH o underlying debt securities issued.
(i) BWEREH (i) Cash flow hedges
AEEFEABREREFNE The Group hedged the portion of foreign exchange
Hots R AN SHE R £ Bl risks arising from variability of cash flows from foreign
TAREREBFIEENINE currency denominated financial instruments using
BB EE S © currency swaps under cash flow hedge.
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17.

FNERBRERGEITHES
BREREER

AEER-_Z_ZEHHAIARFEF )
TCRERERTE - HEESEEFET/ D
B AR L minAEREE S HFeHem
BH - femABRDEEEFMER

RIBUEEHE - %KEE BB B
Eé?ttﬁ%f?ﬂ?z ZELENEREBBIA
EL/%%*E’JF‘EWZIK%I&%%E%EMO
ZEER BB 2EER -

BN RARZEBN TR FFIE2.5% %
HFE - ZSERNEEHNBRAEEESE
MBS A RARRE — R E RITBRAXE
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ZERREFE R
QIE:3E S e 23ut +_1

£10 i a2
BARER -
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A —REERITHRAX » L2 WAE
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= DAEDD °

/DZ TE

BOARPNEREERRABNEEER

17.

Loans with special 100% SFGS

Loans with special 100% guarantee under the
SFGS

The Group introduced special 100% SFGS in 2020. This measure
aims to alleviate the burden of paying employee wages and rents
by small and medium-sized enterprises which are suffering from
reduced income, thereby help minimise enterprise shutting down
and layoffs.

Under this scheme, loans are originated by participating lenders.
Upon origination, these participating lenders would sell the loans
to the Group without recourse. These loans are fully guaranteed by
the Hong Kong Government.

An interest rate of the Prime Rate minus 2.5% per annum is
charged to the borrowers. These loan interest, net of the funding
costs and relevant general operating and administrative expenses
incurred by the Group, are passed to the Government.

The maximum repayment period of the loan under the guarantee
is 10 years, with an option of principal moratorium for up to forty-
two months.

Accordingly, loan default losses are covered by the Government's
guarantee in relation to loans with special 100% SFGS and no
impairment allowance is recognised in view of the minimal default
risk of the Government. All loan interest received is set aside to
meet the funding costs, general operating and administrative
expenses in relation to the purchase and servicing of the loans of
the Group. The remaining balance of the interest received, if any,
will be passed to the Government. The Group is responsible for the
operation of the product.
2022 2021
FHBT
HK$'000

FHERT
HK$'000

90,162,235 71,063,154
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18. BERE S FHE 18. Loan portfolio, net
2022 2021
F#ET FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEZRBERES Residential mortgage portfolio 3,781,115 3,623,063
eI EREE Non-mortgage portfolio
HEER Infrastructure loans 7,576,696 4,813,509
At Others 112,321 139,717
11,470,132 8,576,289
BB ERE (5E3.2(00) Allowance for loan impairment (Note 3.2(b))
FEZRBEREE Residential mortgage portfolio (564) (120)
JERIBEREE Non-mortgage portfolio
HEEX Infrastructure loans (12,522) (4,707)
HAith Others (1,588) (649)
(14,674) (5,476)
11,455,458 8,570,813
B ERERELE AN AREER Total allowance for loan impairment as a percentage of the
TEANE LT outstanding principal balances of the loan portfolio is as follows:

2022 2021

/szﬁﬁéﬁi@ F(hEZ4E4E  Total allowance for loan impairment as

%@%EEI’JE a percentage of the gross loan portfolio 0.13% 0.06%
EHEFURERER 2 ZREBERmHE Allowance for loan impairment has been made after taking into
AITIE account the current market value of the collateral.

2022 2021

EERBSEBEEETHES  Grossimpaired loan portfolio as
LEENE DL (FFEE3.2(9) a percentage of gross loan portfolio
(Note 3.2(2)) 0.03% 0.01%
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19. EBHT/E

(a)

UaEEZETAR2EI
AR HIRE

BAFED IR ERE S

19. Investment securities

(a)

Investment securities at FVOCI

2022 2021
TAET
HK$'000

FTER
HK$"000

Debt securities at fair value

RESE™ Listed in Hong Kong 548,233 754,458

REBRIN TR Listed outside Hong Kong 696,741 1,604,114

JE LT Unlisted - 1,288,610
A AFEZEsTAEMZER  Total FVOCI securities

W BB A R 1,244,974 3,647,182

AR SFEZCE AE M 2R E ) E
SERETES  ETANESRE
ERAERMNE - MAKREFHUILE
B R 2 ZBEA M B RRIEB K
BeatBRenERHESREENE
IH o

RBEITHBERIDTARFERC
AEMEEWEOEFESFMAT -

FVOCI securities comprise debt securities where the
contractual cash flows are solely principal and interest and
the objective of the Group’s business model is achieved both
by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets.

FVOCI securities are analysed by categories of issuers as
follows:

2022 2021

FE T FHIT

HK$’'000 HK$'000

SR1T R H M mhiE Banks and other financial institutions 433,771 2,649,426
NEEE Corporate entities 459,528 840,180
N T Public sector entities 351,675 =
HR R Central governments - 157,576
1,244,974 3,647,182
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246

AT EEEH AR 2 RS

The movement in FVOCI securities is summarised as follows:

SR EgmaT
2021
T
HK$'000
n—A—A8 As at 1 January 3,647,182 4,418,962
3840 Additions 660,388 -
fED Redemption (2,949,474) (766,854)
b i Amortisation 1,083 710
NFEEHE) Change in fair value (120,561) (23,755)
HNEEIE H R Exchange difference 6,356 18,119
Rt+tZA=+—H As at 31 December 1,244,974 3,647,182

BRRE EEERRAKEEER

i B0 B R T L 3.2(d) 4 BE

(b) KIAFEEZ{TANERBES

"&E

BRFEIRNRZMEER
ES NEHWEREETES

Information on the impairment, credit quality and the
Group's exposure to credit risk are disclosed in Note 3.2(d).

(b) Investment securities at FVPL

2022 2021
THAT
HK$'000

FHBT
HK$'000

Exchange-traded funds and real estate
investment trusts at fair value

REB L™ Listed in Hong Kong 9,628 10,710
AAFEZE (LR ABET Total FVPL securities
BB 9,628 10,710

REE AT SR B A FTE A
NFEECF AR M2 E KRR EN
RoMERES REMEREETE
SEEMBFREDBR/UATFER
{Eat AtRzs -

The Group classifies other investment securities in exchange-
traded funds and real estate investments trusts at FVPL,
which do not quality for measurement at either amortised
cost or FVOCI.
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(c)

IAAFEERCET ABRAESNE D
BT -

The movement in FVPL securities is summarised as follows:

R—H—H As at 1 January 10,710 265,769
0 Additions = -
= Sale = (246,384)
NEEEE Change in fair value (1,092) (8,726)
HNEE [ = RE Exchange difference 10 51
R+=—A=+—H As at 31 December 9,628 10,710
HEERAIIRMEFIRE (c) Investment securities at amortised cost

RS ARG IE R E7555%  Debt securities at amortised cost

REB LN Listed in Hong Kong 6,901,746 6,858,248
REBEIN LT Listed outside Hong Kong 3,336,204 2,410,668
10,237,950 9,268,916
L™ Unlisted 2,909,708 1,941,968
IREE SRR DR VB AR E  Gross investment securities at
FUbE] amortised cost 13,147,658 11,210,884
R ERARTINREFE A AR Impairment allowance on investment
T E R (M EE3.2(d)) securities at amortised cost
(Note 3.2(d)) (4,582) (3,892)
TR SHAK AT IR B 3B 5 4B R Total amortised cost securities 13,143,076 11,206,992

AEBERRETEUTREZER
B DERESRE D BAREHEK
B

s EBEANBEABEEEMN
WHRAEHRDRE &

o  REAKNKKRERTERBNHEA
EREDEZEANINAEHM
NEERSEFE o

The Group classifies investment securities as at amortised
cost only if both of the following criteria are met:

o the asset is held within a business model with the
objective of collecting the contractual cash flows, and
o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to

cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding.
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TR AT HE Rl o AT HE SH K AN B R Amortised cost securities are analysed by categories of
EE L CINE issuers as follows:
2021
T T
HK$'000
RITREAM S B E Banks and other financial institutions 4,882,359 2,725,359
NGRS Corporate entities 5,933,616 5,581,354
UNY Public sector entities 602,801 1,253,154
FR R BT Central governments 1,728,882 1,651,017
13,147,658 11,210,884
T4 4 AR AN B R B 55 4 ) 4 Eh Rk st 4n The movement in amortised cost securities is summarised
T as follows:
2022 2021
TExT FETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
R—HA—H As at 1 January 11,210,884 9,733,358
184 Additions 3,992,780 2,744,548
HENER Sales and redemption (1,845,336) (1,360,601)
b s Amortisation 21,856 1,265
AN 2= RE Exchange difference (232,526) 92,314
R+=—HA=+—8H As at 31 December 13,147,658 11,210,884
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20.

IEEEFR

AEBEEKEEFE AR REERRAT
MINERESTERDEAARFEZ( LA
BRENEREE - R-_E-—F+—- A
=+—H INEESHFERE B328ED
TT(ZE=—F 1 286 B8 L) - BiEAER
B R283EBIT( - —F : 24988 7T)
MERZ2HRAEHREKEE B5HE M AR
WA EFRMEBTL(ZT=—F : 47
B TT) BAR AR EUT R & & AR
BEFGENGTER  E#RTHAHBETF
SRFIRBBREBRATHNRERERLE

=
A °©

SNERSTFFRENIIERESNREHLS
REHERES  WXHEREHRS -
SNERSTFHREREIZFETE - LREA
AME MHREXTDREBEREAEGBENTF
BVFHE R FFE=FHRFESD
FHREER(TRA%)TE  URSER
o pRABRAATS - @REXTDRIE
NG I ] A ] R R A E o

20. Placements with the Exchange Fund

The Group has classified the placements of the HKMCA and the
HKMCI with the Exchange Fund as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. As at 31 December 2022, the balance of the
placements with the Exchange Fund amounted to HK$32.8 billion
(2021: HK$28.6 billion), comprising a total principal sum of HK$28.3
billion (2021: HK$24.9 billion) plus income earned and accrued
but not yet withdrawn as at the reporting date, of which HK$3.4
billion (2021: HK$4.7 billion), represented the placement made
by the Company on behalf of the Government for the operation
of PLGS and the remaining portion was the premium and capital
placements made by the HKMCA and the HKMCI.

The placements with the Exchange Fund are invested in the
Investment Portfolio and Long-Term Growth Portfolio of the
Exchange Fund, subject to a lock-up period. The rate of return on
the placements with the Exchange Fund is determined annually.
For Investment Portfolio, the rate of return is calculated on the
basis of the average annual rate of return on the portfolio over
the past six years or the average annual yield of three-year
Government Bond in the previous year (subject to a minimum of
zero percent), whichever is the higher. With respect to the Long-
Term Growth Portfolio, the rate of return is determined based on
the current year time-weighted rate of return.
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21. MIBATIRE 21. Interests in subsidiaries
RZZFE-_—F+=-—A=+—8 ' ARFW Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 31
FEWBARFFHEAOT - December 2022 are as follows:

HARKNKELR
H2AF (FHREA)
(FHREA)  FERONAD

ERTREEROFE FrEsRANE = Percentage of
(Re3 Al Percentage of  shares held by
TR L 2 Particulars of issued and shares heldby  the Company's
Place of TEEE fully paid up share capital the Company subsidiary
incorporation Principal activities (Class of shares) (or its nominee)  (or its nominee)
BARIBEEBRAR B AASEETEERERET 10000005 (EBR) 100% TER
HKMC Mortgage Management Limited Hong Kong ERRE  AEENEEZ  HKS1,000,000 (Ordinary) N/A
HAERRE  REEEE
A RREFHETH
bifukoers
Mortgage purchase and
servicing, servicing of
outstanding microfinance

|oans, and origination of
reverse mortgage loans and
policy reverse mortgage
loans, all for the Group

BRRERRERAR BB —RIRBER 3,000,000,00077 (£ &) 100% TEm
HKMC Insurance Limited Hong Kong General insurance business HK$3,000,000,000 (Ordlinary) N/A
BEEEERAT Bk RERBES 10,000,000,000 % 7c (& &) 100% NER
HKMC Annuity Limited Hong Kong Long term insurance business  HK$10,000,000,000 (Ordinary) N/A
BBRETARE (8- )ERAR* Bk B 1,000 87 (EBR) NER NER
HKMC Funding Corporation (1) Limited* Hong Kong Dissolved HK$1,000 (Ordinary) N/A N/A
Bauhinia MBS Limited* REES RS 1,000 7 (k) TR T
Cayman Islands Dissolved US$1,000 (Ordinary) N/A N/A
HKMC Premier Solutions Limited B ARSERHESHEEBER 1008 (EER) TEf 100%
Hong Kong FRH R AR BR it HK$100 (Orcinary) N/A
Provision of marketing and
business development
services and related facilities
t0 the Group
L BEBACRABELIIMIRT - ELRRHWE o These companies are subsidiary undertakings as defined in Schedule 1 to the
BERNBEE SELERAALEHANAAE Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Company does not hold shares
REIRBE S LETEIMAKL - MARBNE in these companies which are set up for the operation of mortgage-backed
BERAELEARINRG - BERERBILEFRE securitisation programmes guaranteed by the Company. HKMC Funding
(F—)BRARNR=-Z=_—FALA=-BEL Corporation (1) Limited ceased business on 2 September 2021 and was
EEEBITR_T_—_F+ARAMHK - dissolved on 5 October 2022. Bauhinia MBS Limited ceased business on 8
Bauhinia MBS Limited A = =—&F+— AN November 2021 and was dissolved on 24 January 2022.
HEEEEEBYR T —F— = +@
HAREL o
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22. FEIRIE - IR R HEMEE 22. Prepayments, deposits and other assets

2022 2021

F#&xT FAETT

HK$'000 HK$'000

NECHEFES Corporate club debentures 910 910

EE X FM R RIE CSA receivables 3,506,764 132,381
E2REBEERND3ITESH  Receivables from securities issued for

JE W IR settlement after the reporting date 985,472 1,761,894

H A U GRIR Other receivables 358,223 312,785

Hih &= Other assets 62,449 59,567

4,913,818 2,267,537

EHREBEERAT —T-_—FF% 251



SmEBEHRERMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

23. BIEEE 23. Fixed assets
i) BETEEEH () Movement in fixed assets
BRRE
WER
EREEE WAERE
Right-of-use BRRER
assets on office
leased FEMEEE  equipment, RE
properties Leasehold furniture B Motor g
forown use improvement  and fixtures  Computers vehicle Total
TR TR TR TR TR THEx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZ-—E—F—HHMAK Costasat 1 January 2021 208,891 61493 14,503 273,156 775 558,818
10 Additions 8,930 15,626 8,578 37,141 409 70,684
i/ e Written off/disposals (16,487) (22,077) (4,295) (37) - (42,89)
W=E-—%+-F=1+—H Costasat31December 2021
PR 201,334 55,042 18,786 310,260 1,184 586,606
#m Additions 84 6,166 855 22,297 - 29,402
Wt /B Written off/disposals - @16) (132) - (30) (578)
R=Z-—%+=-f=+-HA Costasat31December 2022
KR A 201,418 60,792 19,509 332,557 1,154 615,430
RZE-_—F—F—0f Accumulated depreciation as at
ZitE 1 January 2021 (22,258) (41,240) (12,106) (225,044) (779) (301,423
& (fi3E10) Depreciation charge (Note 10) (49,29¢) (5,665) 2612 (32.475) 29) (90,077)
i/ HE Written off/disposals 16,487 22,036 4,275 37 - 42835
W=E-—F+-A=+—H Accumulated depreciation as at
MEFHE 31 December 2021 (55,067) (24,869) (10,443) (257,482) (804) (348 665)
& (HizE10) Depreciation charge (Note 10) (38,682) (7.932) (2,752) (30,082) (89) (79,537)
Wi/ Le Written off/disposals - 416 132 - - 548
R=E--#%+=-A=1+—H Accumulated depreciation as at
HETHE 31 December 2022 (93,749) (32,385) (13,063) (287,564) (893) (427,654)
R=ZZZH+ZH=t—F Asat31December 2022
AR Cost 201,418 60,792 19,509 332,557 1,154 615,430
RithE Accumulated depreciation (93,749) (32,385) (13,063) (287,564) (893) (427,654)
REFE Net book amount 107,669 28,407 6,446 44,993 261 187,776
W=B-—#+-A=+-H Asat31December 2021
%y Cost 201,334 55,042 18,786 310,260 1,184 586,606
ZitE Accumulated depreciation (55,067) (24,869) (10,443) (257.482) (804) (348,665)
REFE Net book amount 146,267 30,173 8,343 52,778 380 237,91
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(ii)

HE

BN K5I R A B E & & 5 a0
T

Leases

The statement of financial position shows the following
amounts relating to leases:

EREEE — BT

Right-of-use assets — Buildings 107,669 146,267

HEAE Lease liabilities

——FR — within 1 year 35,794 37,692

— BE—F — over 1 year 73,987 109,725
109,781 147,417

RAFE - F AREEE 84,0008
TT(ZZE=—4 : 8,930,000/ 7T) °

HEWREKRITEBEEN SN
T~

EREEENE —BF

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year were
HK$84,000 (2021: HK$8,930,000).

The consolidated income statement shows the following
amounts relating to leases:

2021

TET
HK$'000

Depreciation charge of right-of-use
assets — Buildings 38,682 49,296

FEZ Interest expense

1,966 2,429

R-ZT——F HERSHAHEES
39,686,000 w( = & = —
39,676,000/ 7T ) °

AEEEESETHAE  MEHEE
Bl R7NF 0 BHE T At &R
EIEE -

RAEELE LT ASN MEHEE
HeRRER MK LRERE - KED
BRRRIEERETHARET
&£ MIFERMMEAEA -

The total cash outflow for leases in 2022 was HK$39,686,000
(2021: HK$39,676,000).

The Group leases various offices and rental contracts are
mainly made for fixed periods of six years but may have
extension options as described below.

Extension and termination options are included in property
leases of the Group for operational flexibility. The majority of
extension and termination options held are exercisable only
by the Group and not by the respective lessor.
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24. FEFFHIE

24. Interest payable

2022 2021

FET T
HK$°000 HK$'000

AT RENENHE

Interest payable from:

— BETEBES — debt securities issued 1,235,422 632,241
— FEEHE L — interest rate swap contracts 418,843 55,091
—HEmaE — other liabilities 14 910

1,654,279 688,242

25. FE{TIRIE « FEfTRIZ R EH{hE& 25. Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other
= liabilities

2022 2021

FHBxT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

& IR T8 K2 PR A~ B 2 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 1,321,423 1,788,966
HEMEE Other liabilities 11,487,889 19,382,767
HEBE Lease liabilities 109,781 147,417
H b Other provision 71,290 65,001
12,990,383 21,384,151

EMBBEEFrEREFT/ I EREERGET
B4 Bl B 2R e (B RE32) A A EE XK
a1 8 (BT 5E29()) AT B M IR B R B K (B
MR B R R AER ) 11,487,889,000%8 7T
T — —4 :14,831,893,000/87T) * £
EAR—ZEE=F+_AR-_ZTTHF—
AEBRFEEMNZRBEREELHEMRE
MRELERE  ZECREBER=ZZ=_=
F+_ARBEETEN R_ZE—_—F
T+ A=+ —BUEREELEHR( T —_—
£ : 4,550,874,000787T) °

Other liabilities represented mainly the guarantee fee and fund
received (net of claims and related expenses) of HK$11,487,889,000
(2021: HK$14,831,893,000) under the special concessionary
measures of the SFGS (Note 32) and the PLGS (Note 29(a)), and the
deferred consideration which was used for credit enhancement on
the mortgage loans purchased from the Government in December
2003 and January 2004 and was fully repaid to Government in
December 2022 with no outstanding balance as at 31 December
2022 (2021: HK$4,550,874,000).
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26. RIGEBRBIRIGEE 26. Insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets

2022
8 BRR ot 8 BB

Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance
TAL THT THERT FAT AT TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

—RRBREK General insurance:
AmEREREREREE Provision for unearned premiums
and guarantee fees 6,411,311 721,115 5,690,196 5,109,451 481,508 4,627,943
RARRE Provision for outstanding claims:
— B8R/ (BRE)BR — claims reported/(recovery) - 100 (100) - - -
—BEABRRBRRE — claims incurred but not reported 124,670 12,837 111,833 92,386 9,541 82,845
124,670 12,937 111,733 92,386 9,541 82,845
6,535,981 734,052 5801929 5201837 491049 4,710,788
AERRE: Life insurance:
REFBEAEE Policyholders' liabilities 14,319,190 - 14,319,190 11,582,453 - 11582453
20,855,171 734,052 20,121,119 16,784,290 491049 16,293,241
(a) —RRIRBRZERS (a) Generalinsurance
i) FRHREREREAREGES (i)  Analysis of movement in provision for unearned
54T premiums and guarantee fees

2022
4 BRR B 8 Bk e

Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
TR TiEn TR TETL TR T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000

R=A-H Asat 1 January 5,109,451 481,508 4,627,943 2,989,183 369,205 2,619,978
BUERRE (fifzE8) Premiums written (Note 8) 2,558,053 346,783 2,211,270 3,036,000 196,845 2,839,155
ERSRE (fitz8) Premiums earned (Note 8) (1.256,193)  (107,176)  (1,149,017) (915,732) (84,542) (831,190)
W+=A=1-H As at 31 December 6,411,311 721,115 5,690,196 5,109,451 481,508 4,627,943
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(i) RRBERBEZEB DN (i) Analysis of movement in provision for outstanding
claims

2022
E2 | Bl R ES

Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
T TiEn TAR TAL TAL TAL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000

il b= Asat 1 January 92,386 9,541 82,845 59,712 8297 51415
RANEEES Claims paid (6,457) (1,410) (5,047) (729) (55) (670)
BlERZR Claims recovery 1,150 268 882 4286 818 3468
BEL/(E8) =R (Hsks) : Claims incurred/(written back) (Note 8):
—CHEEZ — claims reported 5,307 1,242 4,065 (3,660) (817) (2819
—EEEERRHER — claims Incurred but not reported 32,284 3,296 28,988 3,783 1,298 31,485
37,591 4,538 33,053 29117 181 2863
M=A=1-H As at 31 December 124,670 12,937 111,733 92,386 9,541 82,845
(b) ASRME (b) Life insurance
(i BREZEAEESESHN (i)  Analysis of movement in policyholders’ liabilities
2022 2021
8 BRRE b2 8 BRR |
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
Thx FEL TR THT T o
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
iz = Asat 1 January 11,582,453 - 11582453 8138076 - 813807
BRBREREMNFE Claims and benefits paid (808,797) - (808,797) (606,437) - (606,437)
PEABZRREEFAA  Claimsincurred and movement in
AEEH (M8) policyholders' liabilities (Note 8) 3,545,534 - 3545534 4050814 - 4050814
W+-A=+-AR As at 31 December 14,319,190 - 14,319,190 11582453 - 11582453
iy FEBRRAGHEINSE (i)  Key assumptions and reserving approach

HREBRBAL  EBEBR
BHBERH REF - FHOEB
RINEDGERE R -

REBEARBERA R(REBRE
BODATEREZE(RHE
EEEE) R ADEIR B - HE{E R
ASRRETRBRETERE
FREGMERETHE TR
RERIREEE

For long term insurance contracts, economic
assumptions are continually reviewed and updated.
Non-economic assumptions are reviewed at least
annually.

Based on generally accepted actuarial principles and in
accordance with Hong Kong Insurance (Determination
of Long Term Liabilities) Rules of the Insurance
Ordinance, the valuation of individual life liabilities
was carried out using the Modified Net Level Premium
Valuation method, subject to a minimum of the
surrender value.
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(iif)

(iv)

FISHEBR
A

{8 FAHKA18%E T= R & (&L T
KREREHERBMNAR) - W
SEMFETRBR EATH
RAETIR 15% MIREB AN -
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REEHRBRE(RHAGEE
i) R AIDE 1315 (BNT 5t B FE
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BEEH

BEIHBRHETERABLS
MERB - RZE-_—F &
B R A PTG - BURR
B EHEMg708E (==
——F:08BT) °

fEEFREE

HEMEREREGEE S RE
REERHE=FAR=F
BRENEEBRHRBIREKS
KR EL B - A EE B HE
HAEFAEENEERREK
HER IRENEENKER
BB AR B AR St = 18
BEMNEEBRERSERNTF
BERBH - W EAFEEB(R
SE(RHABET) Rk
EABEESRENBEE
3l o HEMRAEIN(ZT=—
1 4%)

(i)

(iv)

Non-economic assumptions
Mortality

HKA18 mortality table adjusted by mortality
improvement and selection loading is used, with
loading of 15% for provision for adverse deviations on
top of best estimate mortality assumptions.

Lapse

In accordance with Section 13 of the Hong Kong
Insurance (Determination of Long Term Liabilities)
Rules (i.e. no allowance is made for the voluntary
discontinuance).

Renewal expense

The renewal expense assumption is based on internal
experience study. The renewal expense assumption
was increased in 2022 and the insurance liabilities has
increased by HK$87 million (2021: HK$0.2 million).

Valuation interest basis

The valuation interest rate is the weighted proportion
of yield on existing assets and reinvestment yield
expected of assets bought within three years of
valuation date and three years after valuation date.
The reinvestment yield of assets bought within three
years of valuation date is obtained by taking the
average of yield on current assets and reinvestment
yield of assets expected to be bought three years after
valuation date. This methodology is in compliance with
the Hong Kong Insurance (Determination of Long Term
Liabilities) Rules and the actuarial guidance provided
by the Actuarial Society of Hong Kong. The valuation
interest rate is 4% (2021: 4%).
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27. ERTREES

27. Debt securities issued

2022

TR
HK$'000

2021
T
HK$'000

2 8 68 R AR B R BV B 75 7% 55 Debt securities carried at
amortised cost
FEES MTN 23,460,175 24,928,315
REE SR AT IRV E TS B 5 48%8  Total debt securities carried at
amortised cost 23,460,175 24,928,315
EERETER I LIRS RE Y Debt securities designated as hedged
WIEEE S items under cash flow hedge
R EIES MTN 2,819,066 3,452,590
fEEAEHRIER W AR SR H  Total debt securities designated as
MEKE S BT hedged items under cash flow hedge 2,819,066 3,452,590
EEAMTEE L L AFEE T Debt securities designated as hedged
Y575 7% 55 items under fair value hedge
BT AT EIGES DIP notes 596,368 1,080,122
R HA{E 25 MTN 104,199,663 86,191,940
HEE AYHRIE B WA A FEE R Total debt securities designated as
K& TS5 5 1B E hedged items under fair value hedge 104,796,031 87,272,062
BEITERESFLRE Total debt securities issued 131,075,272 115,652,967

ERTEFEFNESBMNT

The movement in debt securities issued is summarised as follows:

2022 2021

TET F&TT

HK$'000 HK$'000

nw—HA—H As at 1 January 115,268,834 61,262,254
LT Issuance 97,594,174 109,469,731
B BEE Less: Redemption (77,621,597) (55,532,806)
N Exchange difference (248,009) 69,655
HEBEBRE Total nominal value 134,993,402 115,268,834
RIS D Unamortised portion of discount (111,727) (77,690)
N EFEE Fair value adjustment (3,806,403) 461,823
R+-—A=+—H As at 31 December 131,075,272 115,652,967
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REEBETHES : Notes issued during the year comprise:

RHAE S
MTN
FET
HK$°000
BEITEEEE Amount issued at nominal value 97,594,174
B U E R IE Consideration received 97,470,457
Fi A B BT ERE 519 8 A K E E K All the debt securities issued are unsecured obligations of the
B MBOIXZEEBESEERME R Group, and are issued for the purposes of providing general
LBECRIEERMERSE - working capital and refinancing.
28. flg& 28. Share capital

BEETRERE - Issued and fully paid:

20 1B A% 2 billion ordinary shares 12,000,000 9,500,000
BEAREEE AT The movement in share capital is summarised as follows:

2022 2021
F#&xT FHT
HK$°000 HK$'000
Rn—H—H As at 1 January 9,500,000 7,000,000
FE Capital injection 2,500,000 2,500,000
Rt+t=—BA=+—H As at 31 December 12,000,000 9,500,000
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29. EERMEATIININEXRRZ S
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0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

AREBMAARFEERERTEF
REBZFATIRENTE R
BERERBREESE RSN
BRAREI10EBT(ZE=_—
F 19088

REBRAFEEE24108
BIL(ZT = —F 227088
TIBRE (FAREESE
BEHEIMNEA :

RRARRAFELERET LS
ERMNR - (EREBESAR
BE(ZDE - —F: 408 %
=

o

CREIRE B BINEE SR
ARERERREE  R=F
ZZTF+ ABEEHRI0EET
REES0EBT N_ZT
——F+-_A=t—HIEEX
BERBLESHNE(ZZ
——FMEHE) K

29. Material related party transactions

(@)

The Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries are wholly
owned by the Government for the account of the Exchange
Fund. During the year, the Group entered into or maintained
material transactions with the related parties as follows:

Transactions with the HKMA, a Government-related entity,
included the following:

(i)

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

the Group paid a total fee amount of HK$1.9 million for
the year (2021: HK$1.9 million) to the HKMA in respect
of custodian and clearing agent services from the
Central Moneymarkets Unit;

the Group incurred a secondment fee of HK$24.1
million for the year (2021: HK$22.7 million) in respect of
secondees from the HKMA;

the Company paid no back-up site service fee for the
year (2021: HK$0.4 million) to the HKMA,

the Monetary Authority through the Exchange Fund
increased its revolving credit facility to the Company to
HK$80 billion in October 2020 from HK$30 billion, and
there was no outstanding balance and accrued interest
as at 31 December 2022 (2021: nil for both); and
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on 27 June 2022, the Monetary Authority through the
Exchange Fund injected funds of HK$2.5 billion into the
Company for the purpose of financing the Company'’s
additional capital injection into the HKMCA on the same
date. Accordingly, the Monetary Authority through
the Exchange Fund maintained its commitment to
inject additional funds up to HK$15 hillion in aggregate
(reduced from the original amount of HK$20 billion
after taking into account of the HK$2.5 billion capital
injection each into the HKMCA on 28 June 2021 and 27
June 2022 respectively) into the Company as equity for
the sole purpose of financing the Company’s additional
capital injection into the HKMCA and the Company
maintained its commitment to inject such additional
funds into the HKMCA as equity for the sole purpose of
maintaining the HKMCA'’s margin of solvency above a
certain level.

Transactions with the Government included the following:

(i)

the HKMCI provided 80%, 90% and 100% SFGS loan
guarantees with a total guarantee commitment up
to HK$280 billion reimbursable by the Government
(including guarantees on 100% SFGS loans acquired
by the Company), see Note 32 for details. With respect
to the day-to-day operation of the 100% SFGS, the
Government reimbursed HK$128.2 million (2021:
HK$87.5 million) to the HKMCI for the administrative
expenses incurred by the HKMCI for the year;

the Company entered into an agreement with the
Government, pursuant to which the Company
maintained its commitment to purchase from SFGS
lenders all 100% SFGS loans that are fully guaranteed
by the Government via the HKMCI, see Note 17 for
details;
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(i) the Company and the HKMCI entered into an
agreement with the Government, pursuant to which
the Company committed to purchase all loans
under the PLGS from the participating Als and the
Government provided full funding to the Company
for the purchase of all the PLGS loans, the HKMCI is
responsible for the operation and administration of the
PLGS. With respect to the advance payment received
from the Government to purchase loans under the
PLGS, a portion of such advance funding pending for
the purchase of loans was deposited with Als with
an outstanding balance of HK$1 billion (2021: HK$0.7
billion) and the remaining portion of the advance
payment was placed with the Exchange Fund on behalf
of the Government with an outstanding balance of
HK$3.4 billion as at 31 December 2022 respectively
(2021: HK$4.7 billion). The HKMCI was appointed by the
Government to act as an administrator for PLGS for a
fee of HK$6.5 million (2021: HK$2.2 million) for the year.
Risks and rewards arising from the PLGS loans rest
with the Government; and

(iv) the Company held investment of HK$382 million (2021:
HK$307 million) in the Hong Kong Government Bonds
as at 31 December 2022 and the interest thereon was
HK$9.9 million (2021: HK$0.8 million).

The Company provided corporate support services to its
subsidiaries during the year for fees on an arm'’s length
basis.
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FERTAERIE AN TG ANT ¢ Balances of amounts due to relevant related parties are as
follows:

HEES B
The Exchange Fund The Government

2022 2021 2022 2021
T FHT Ti#gx TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

INEE S (KI:E20)  Placements with the Exchange Fund

(Note 20) 32,798,933 28,633,258 - -
Hith & & (BizE25532)  Other liabilities (Notes 25 and 32) - - 11,487,889 19,382,767
(b) EEEEEAS (b) Key management personnel
FTEFTEREBABAEENEEEED Key management personnel are those persons having
RBERE - BERIEHAREE X authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
WAL BIEEERSREEAS - controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly,

including directors and senior officers.

R-IE-_—_FR-_TE_—F FEE Compensation of the key management personnel for 2022
HE A B EE and 2021 comprised:

FehEMERES ST Salaries and other short-term
employee benefits 32,315 31,237
BEBR 12 1E A Post-employment benefits 2,938 2,866

35,253 34,103
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30. #*&iE 30. Commitments
(a) &XF (a) Capital

2022 2021

FET FHIT

HK$'000 HK$'000

SHENETL Authorised and contracted for 3,443 3,356
EHLEBRRET L Authorised but not contracted for 63,711 60,557

67,154 63,913

P EARAET BREEERRER
AR -

(b) HAthikiE

RIEREFAER

Undrawn loan commitments

The above capital commitments mainly relate to
commitments to purchase computer equipment and
software.

(b) Other commitments

2022 2021
THAT
HK$'000

FB
HK$'000

2,109,673 2,847,131

31. RIBIRMEET B R 2 EiRBETE

R-TE-_—F+-A=+—8 A£EK
BREENRRIIRAELN A 1,106 1875
(=T = —4 : 889&#T) - HF 1158
BIL(CZE-—F: BEBT)EARER
R AREEBRE - MASE R 817X
BB TEBT(ZT - —F : 806EH
L) BIRR

R-_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H A£EEZL
ZIRIBFEINRERIZRBEEL /23318
(T =——F 18788 L) HFR70(E
BT(CE-——F  4/EBT)ERXAES
REAREERRE  mMAEEA BT
EHRTI163EABITL(ZE = —F : 14085
T0) KRR e

31. Mortgage Insurance Programme and Reverse
Mortgage Programme

As at 31 December 2022, the total risk-in-force of the Group under
the MIP was approximately HK$110.6 billion (2021: HK$88.9 billion)
of which HK$11.5 billion (2021: HK$8.3 billion) was ceded to the
approved reinsurers and the balance of HK$99.1 billion (2021:
HK80.6 billion) was retained by the Group.

As at 31 December 2022, the total risk-in-force of the Group
under the RMP was approximately HK$23.3 billion (2021: HK18.7
billion) of which HK$7.0 billion (2021: HK$4.7 billion) was ceded to
the approved reinsurer and the balance of HK$16.3 billion (2021:
HK$14.0 billion) was retained by the Group.
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BT - Bt - ZFEmA R AELS
BIRNAEBHNEERBRINER -

ERE ETPERERERTENESH
& F2REMEE7 -

32. Special concessionary measures under the SME

Financing Guarantee Scheme

The Group provided loan guarantee products with 80% and 90%
guarantee coverage under the existing SFGS at a concessionary
guarantee fee rate, together with guarantee for 100% SFGS loans
acquired for a total guarantee commitment up to HK$280 billion
reimbursable by the Government.

Regarding the 80% and 90% guarantee products, all guarantee
fees collected under the special loan guarantee products are set
aside to meet the relevant default claims and related out-of-pocket
expenses. The remaining balance of the guarantee fees, if any, will
be returned to, and any shortfall will be borne by, the Government.
The Group is responsible for the operation of the product and
the applicable day-to-day operating costs. There is no impact on
the consolidated income statement of the Group in respect of
guarantee fee revenue and default claims. Given that the Group
operates only these products for the Government, the Group
considers the risk and rewards associated with this product rest
with the Government. Hence, the risk-in-force for these products
has not been included as the Group’s off-balance sheet exposures.

For the 100% SFGS, please refer to Note 17 for more details.
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33. AWM BIRA TR EHEE 33. Statement of financial position and reserve
£J)] movement of the Company

BI1AEAATIR=-FT=-=—%+=-A8

33.1 Statement of financial position of the Company as at

=+— BB R

31 December 2022

2022 2021
TET TR
HK$'000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
e hEHES Cash and short-term funds 25,463,522 33,813,827
JRE U ) 2. K fE R Interest and remittance receivables 1,361,017 862,200
TEELHMIA Derivative financial instruments 603,715 812,397
/N RV E ERETEI TR Loans with special 100%
B BERERER guarantee under the SME
Financing Guarantee Scheme 90,162,235 71,063,154
ERHEEFHE Loan portfolio, net 9,762,979 7,117,247
ERIRE : Investment securities:
— AATFEE A AEAM — at fair value through other
ZHEHKE comprehensive income 1,244,974 3,647,182
— URAFEE T AER — at fair value through
profit or loss 9,628 10,710
— RS AT IR — at amortised cost 11,840,925 10,987,143
INEESTFER Placements with the Exchange Fund 3,391,087 4,665,273
B A RRE Interests in subsidiaries 17,655,313 14,120,803
BAFIE  RekEMEE Prepayments, deposits and
other assets 4,515,119 1,910,836
EEBE Fixed assets 165,933 213,559
BEHHE Total assets 166,176,447 149,224,331
af LIABILITIES
FERTRILE Interest payable 1,654,657 688,255
(R INETRESY Placements by subsidiary 174,000 147,000
FERTIRIE ~ BN K& Accounts payable, accrued
HibaE expenses and other liabilities 8,106,268 13,913,015
TESmIA Derivative financial instruments 4,192,097 334,529
EHRIBAE Current tax liabilities 98,666 136,064
EEFIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 3,459 5,747
BEITERE S Debt securities issued 131,075,272 115,652,967
BE8E Total liabilities 145,304,419 130,877,577
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2022 2021

TERT FHTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
R EQUITY
ERiFE ABGRAREE Capital and reserves attributable
to the equity holder:
%N Share capital 12,000,000 9,500,000
TREB & A Retained profits 332 8,734,079 8,829,710
N EFE Fair value reserve 332 (1,017) 11,416
Epal=ti Hedging reserve 332 138,966 5,628
DA Total equity 20,872,028 18,346,754
BENEZEH Total liabilities and equity 166,176,447 149,224,331
EERENR-TE-_=FRA-F+-_AHHLE Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
R RETIAT o on 22 May 2023.
REX YUE Wai Man, Eddie =S LI Ling Cheung, Raymond
B FE#BTESE Deputy Chairman and HITEEFAE Executive Director and
Executive Director Chief Executive Officer
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33.2 KATHIEE 33.2 Reserves of the Company
RE R AT ERHE Fapal- 1] it
Retained Fair value Hedging
profits reserve reserve Total
Tz T FHET T#T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-_E-_—F—A—RA#&# Balance as at 1 January 2021 8,409,021 9,519 (96) 8,418 444
AEEHF Profit for the year 420,689 - - 420,689
1’@%@4&(* ; Other comprehensive income:
?@“f I:ﬁ)\ﬁﬁtﬁﬁuﬁlﬁﬁ Change in the fair value of debt securities
BREHFATEE at FvoCl - 2,634 - 2,634
?@“f I:aJr)\Hﬁt%@&*’\ Change in the loss allowance of
BREFERREZD debt securities at FVOCI - (737) = (737)
WE%&WE’\];WIE Change in the fair value of hedging
ATEES instruments at cash flow hedge - - 5,724 5,724
AFEEAREEE Total comprehensive income for the year 420,689 1,897 5,724 428,310
—ZE-_-%#+ZfA=+-H As at 31 December 2021 8,829,710 11,416 5,628 8,846,754
AEEER Loss for the year (95,631) - - (95,631)
ﬁﬁ%@ E18), /s Other comprehensive (10ss)/income:
NTHEE { I:#r)\ﬂtﬁ%@ﬂﬁlm Change in the fair value of debt securities
HEHE B% at FVOCl - (12,070) - (12,070)
NEER I:qu)\H‘rtﬁ%EHﬁlm Change in the loss allowance of
NEBESBBRAREE debt securities at FVOCI - (363) - (363)
RS RE RSP T A Change in the fair value of hedging
ATEED instruments at cash flow hedge - - 133,338 133,338
REERE(ER)/WaEsE  Total comprehensive (I0ss)/income for
the year (95,631) (12,433) 133,338 25,274
R-B-—_£+-B=+-H As at 31 December 2022 8,734,079 (1,017) 138,966 8,872,028
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35.

36.
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RS BEEERMRERRE D R
BEERSFMETE -

hWEBEBrAEHEHEE T _—_F+-A4
=t+—BHIFENGEMBRRIELHAE -

BBMBRR

EERMN T _=FREA-_+-_HBEABK
B ER R o

34.

35.

36.

Directors” material interests in transactions,
arrangements and contracts

Apart from those disclosed in Note 29, there was no other
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation to
the Company’s business, to which any member of the Group was
a party, and in which any person who was a Director at any time
during the year or a connected entity (as defined in the Companies
Ordinance) of any such person had, directly or indirectly, a material
interest, which subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Events after balance sheet date

On 9 May 2023, the Group had announced the launch of a publicly
rated securitisation transaction which consisted of multiple classes
of USD-denominated senior secured notes backed by the cash
flows from a diversified portfolio of projects and infrastructure
loans across multiple geographies and sectors, with an issuance
size of around US$405 million. The Group is expected to divest a
portfolio of its infrastructure loans from its asset purchase and
servicing segment to the securitisation vehicle.

This event is regarded as non-adjusting to the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors
on 22 May 2023.
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